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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees
Thomas Jefferson University:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Thomas Jefferson University and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to Thomas Jefferson University's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Thomas Jefferson University's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Thomas Jefferson University and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2021 and
2020, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the University changed the manner in which it
accounts for leases in the year ended June 30, 2021. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19013-7045
T: (267) 330 - 3000, F: (267) 330 - 3300, www.pwc.com/us
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Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2021, and
schedule of financial responsibility ratios as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the
Department of Education, respectively, and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. The
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and schedule of financial responsibility ratios are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Supplementary Schedules, of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,
2021, on pages 72-74 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 14, 2021 on
our consideration of Thomas Jefferson University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters
for the year ended June 30, 2021. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Thomas
Jefferson University's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

1 a Lo gpns L1

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

October 14, 2021, except with respect to the opinion on the schedule of financial responsibility ratios, as to which
the date is September 30, 2022, and with respect to the opinion on the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and Note 3 to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as to which the date is March 31, 2023

il



Thomas Jefferson University
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2021 and 2020
(In Thousands)

Assets 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $301,454 $801,018
Short-term investments 2,531,594 2,094,997
Accounts receivable 583,790 493,372
Inventory 119,370 103,332
Pledges receivable, current 31,165 31,967
Insurance recoverable, current 71,971 43,412
Assets whose use is limited, current 737 791
Other current assets 51,718 64,288
Total current assets 3,691,799 3,633,177
Long-term investments 1,699,470 1,104,999
Assets whose use is limited, noncurrent 85,630 299,691
Assets held by affiliated foundations 50,670 40,183
Pledges receivable, noncurrent 103,522 97,494
Insurance recoverable, noncurrent 221,032 211,253
Loans receivable from students, net 21,054 22,057
Land, buildings and equipment, net 3,066,244 2,925,367
Right-of-use assets 311,698 -
Other noncurrent assets 36,803 38,004
Total assets $9,287,922 $8,372,225
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Current portion of?
Long-term obligations $33,739 $25,336
Accrued professional liability claims 120,290 81,832
Accrued workers' compensation claims 12,741 14,122
Deferred revenues 28,600 20,111
Interest rate hedges - 24,717
Advances 317,859 82,344
Operating lease obligations 32,783 -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 421,041 369,489
Accrued payroll and related costs 387,176 313,250
Total current liabilities 1,354,229 931,201
Long-term obligations 2,133,005 2,322,825
Accrued pension liability 391,392 787,422
Federal student loan advances 5,867 7,585
Deferred revenues and rent 5,417 40,980
Accrued professional liability claims 459,761 428,183
Accrued workers' compensation claims 25,289 15,546
Interest rate hedges 34,919 47,071
Operating lease obligations 320,082 -
Advances 106,062 391,993
Other noncurrent liabilities 68,981 56,510
Total liabilities 4,905,004 5,029,316
Net assets:
Net assets without donor restriction - Thomas Jefferson University 3,414,189 2,525,219
Noncontrolling interest in joint ventures 17,501 20,496
Total net assets without donor restriction 3,431,690 2,545,715
Net assets with donor restriction 951,228 797,194
Total net assets 4,382,918 3,342,909
Total liabilities and net assets $9,287,922 $8,372,225

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Thomas Jefferson University

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restriction

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Operating revenues, gains and other support:

Net patient service revenue

Grants and contracts

Tuition and fees, net

Investment income

Contributions

Other revenue

Government support for COVID-19
Net assets released from restrictions

(In Thousands)

Total operating revenues, gains and other support

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Insurance
Utilities
Other

Total operating expenses

Income (Loss) from operations before nonrecurring items

Goodwill impairment

Income (Loss) from operations after nonrecurring items

Nonoperating items and other changes in net assets without donor restriction, net:
Return on investments, net of amounts classified as operating revenue

Interest rate hedges
Reclassification of net assets

Net assets released from restrictions used for purchase of property and equipment

Decrease (Increase) in pension liability
Distributions to noncontrolling interest
Other

Increase (Decrease) in nonoperating items and other changes in net assets

without donor restriction

Increase (Decrease) in net assets without donor restriction

2021 2020
$4,599,893 $4,155,428
160,603 123,118
208,909 215,184
77,474 54,495
3,543 3,478
395,159 339,195
159,344 325,058
57,948 56,552
5,662,873 5,272,508
2,585,100 2,528,534
549,177 574,893
980,293 884,014
610,143 582,650
263,796 262,708
56,043 60,055
108,717 115,772
69,066 66,156
434,654 495,895
5,656,089 5,570,677
5,884 (298,169)
- (161,256)
5,884 (459,425)
478,196 60,547
24,629 (41,258)
(322) (1,972)
7,780 6,704
379,655 (315,788)
(10,036) (9,756)
188 626
880,090 (300,897)
$885.974 ($760,322)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Thomas Jefferson University
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

(In Thousands)
2021 2020
Net assets without donor restriction:
Revenues, gains and other support $5,662,873 $5,272,508
Expenses, other than goodwill impairment (5,656,989) (5,570,677)
Goodwill impairment - (161,256)
Nonoperating items and other changes in net assets without donor restriction, net 880,090 (300,897)
Increase (Decrease) in net assets without donor restriction 885,974 (760,322)
Net assets with donor restriction:
Contributions 77,951 57,404
Gain on investments, net 97,702 6,778
Net gain (loss) on externally held trusts 25,544 (4,630)
Investment income 4,719 5,127
Net assets released from restrictions (65,728) (63,256)
Changes in net assets held by affiliated foundations 10,486 (2,915)
Change in value of split interest agreements 3,039 (1,462)
Reclassification of net assets 322 1,972
Increase (Decrease) in net assets with donor restriction 154,035 (982)
Increase (Decrease) in net assets 1,040,009 (761,304)
Net assets, beginning of year 3,342,909 4,104,213
Net assets, end of year $4,382,918 $3,342,909

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



Thomas Jefferson University
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
(In Thousands)

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (Decrease) in net assets $1,040,009 ($761,304)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

(Decrease) Increase in pension liability (379,655) 334,655
Depreciation and amortization 264,695 263,621
Bond premium amortization (8,905) (8,999)
Assets held by affiliated foundation (10,487) 2,915
Gain on investments, net (682,669) (107,114)
Gain on sale of assets (664) -
Recognition of vesting in Premier stock (1,251) (3,647)
Net (gain) loss on interest rate hedges (24,629) 41,258
Goodwill impairment - 161,256
Distribution to noncontrolling interest 10,036 7,701
Funds (withheld) received under the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Program (52,602) 447,993
Sale of controlling interest - 3,719
Contributions designated for acquisition of long-term assets (19,814) (12,612)
Net change due to:
Accounts receivable (90,418) 205,499
Pledges receivable (5,226) 2,572
Inventory (16,038) (29,504)
Other current and noncurrent assets 13,065 (6,263)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 51,552 (126,228)
Accrued payroll and related costs 73,926 19,578
Grant and contract advances 2,186 9,360
Deferred revenues 14,079 24,349
Accrued pension liability (16,375) (26,631)
Insurance recoverable (38,338) 62
Accrued professional liability claims 70,036 31,496
Accrued workers' compensation claims 8,362 59
Dividends received from joint ventures 26,269 18,067
Other current and noncurrent liabilities 11,146 36,910
Net cash provided by operating activities 238,290 528,768

Cash flows from investing activities:

Assets whose use is limited increase - (13,041)
Assets whose use is limited decrease 214,115 292,166
Sale of controlling interest - (145)
Purchase of land, buildings and equipment (391,965) (599,383)
Purchases of investments (9,252,146) (5,291,089)
Sales of investments 8,867,814 5,394,993
Student loans issued (3,647) (3,519)
Student loans repaid 4,650 5,421
Net cash used in investing activities (561,179) (214,597)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Distribution to noncontrolling interest (10,036) (7,701)
Contributions designated for acquisition of long-term assets 19,814 12,612
Federal student loan advances (1,718) (2,825)
Proceeds from long-term obligations - 261,000
Repayment of long-term obligations (184,735) (23,254)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (176,675) 239,832
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (499,564) 554,003
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 801,018 247,015
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $301,454 $801,018

Supplemental disclosures:

Interest paid (net of amount capitalized) $75,809 $74,582
Accounts payable related to buildings and equipment $46,658 $34,520
Operating cash flows for operating leases $49,309 -
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations $332,785 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Thomas Jefferson University
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements represent the consolidated financial position, changes
in net assets and cash flows of Thomas Jefferson University (“TJU”), including TJUH System
(“TJUHS”), Abington Health (“Abington”), Aria Health System (“Aria”), Philadelphia
University, Kennedy Health System (“Kennedy”) and Magee Rehabilitation Hospital
(“Magee”).

TJU is an independent, non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania and recognized as a tax-exempt organization pursuant to Section 501(c) (3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. TJU has a tripartite mission of education, research and patient care.
TJU conducts research and offers undergraduate and graduate instruction through the Sidney
Kimmel Medical College, the Jefferson College of Nursing, the Jefferson College of Pharmacy,
the Jefferson College of Health Professions, the Jefferson College of Population Health, the
Jefferson College of Biomedical Sciences, the Jefferson College of Rehabilitation Sciences, the
Kanbar College of Design, Engineering and Commerce, the School of Continuing and
Professional Studies, the College of Architecture and the Built Environment, and the College
of Science, Health and the Liberal Arts. The combined institution has approximately 7,200
students and is located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, with additional campus locations in the
Greater Philadelphia Region and Atlantic City, New Jersey.

TJUHS, Abington, Aria, Kennedy and Magee are integrated healthcare organizations that
provide inpatient, outpatient and emergency care services through acute care, ambulatory care,
rehabilitation care, physician and other primary care services for residents of the Greater
Philadelphia Region. TJU is the sole corporate member of TIUHS, Abington, Aria, Kennedy
and Magee.

TJU includes the accounts of subsidiaries of Thomas Jefferson University including 1100
Walnut Associates; 925 Walnut Corporation; and the accounts of subsidiaries of TJUHS,
including Thomas Jefferson University Hospitals, Inc. (“TJUH”); Jefferson University
Physicians (“JUP”); Jefferson Physician Services; the Atrium Corporation; Jeffex, Inc.;
Methodist Associates in Healthcare, Inc.; JeffCare, Inc.; JeffCare Alliance, LLC; Jefferson
University Radiology Associates (“JURA”, an 80% owned joint venture); the Riverview
Surgery Center at the Navy Yard, LP (“Riverview”, a 51% owned joint venture); Rothman
Orthopaedic Specialty Hospital, LLC (“ROSH”, a 54% owned joint venture); and the accounts
of subsidiaries of Abington including Abington Memorial Hospital; Lansdale Hospital
Corporation; and Abington Health Foundation; and the accounts of subsidiaries of Aria
including Aria Health; Aria Physician Services; Aria Health Orthopaedics; System Service
Corporation; Aria IPE, LLC; Medical Imaging Associates (an 83% owned joint venture;
liquidated in January 2021); T.F. Development, Inc.; Health Care, Inc.; TMB Enterprises and
Jefferson Health — Northeast Foundation; and the accounts of Philadelphia University; and the
accounts of subsidiaries of Kennedy including Kennedy University Hospital, Inc.; Kennedy



Thomas Jefferson University
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Health Care Foundation; STAT Medical Transport, Inc.; Kennedy Property Corporation;
Kennedy Health Facilities, Inc.; Kennedy Medical Group Practice PC, d/b/a Kennedy Health
Alliance; Kennedy Management Group, Inc.; Professional Medical Management Group, Inc.;
and Garden State Radiology Network, LLC (“GSRN”, a 51% owned joint venture); and the
accounts of Magee.

Subsequent Events
TJU has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through October 14, 2021, which is the
date the financial statements were issued.

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TJU and its
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Financial Statement Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis.

TJU classifies net assets as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions are those assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in fulfilling the mission of TJU. These net
assets may be used at the discretion of TJU’s management and the Board of Trustees.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions are those assets whose use by TJU has been limited by
donors to a specific time period or purpose. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of TJU and/or the passage of time. Other donor
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the funds are to be maintained in perpetuity by TJU,
per the stipulation of the donor.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to
net assets without donor restriction in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets.

TJU’s operating activities within the consolidated statements of operations includes revenues
and expenses from providing education, research and patient services, grants and contracts,
unrestricted contributions, net assets released from restriction, distributions of investment
returns based on TJU’s spending policy.

TJU’s non-operating activities within the consolidated statements of operations include
investment returns and other activities related to endowment, long-term benefit plan obligation
funding changes, student loan net assets and contributions related to land, buildings and
equipment that are not part of the TJU’s operating activities.



Thomas Jefferson University
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Management considers critical accounting
policies to be those that require more significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of
the financial statements including, but not limited to, recognition of net patient service revenue,
which includes implicit price concessions; recognition of estimates for healthcare professional
and general liabilities; determination of fair values of certain financial instruments; and
assumptions for measurement of pension obligations. Management relies on historical
experience and other assumptions believed to be reasonable relative to the circumstances in
making judgments and estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and investments in highly liquid debt
instruments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased and are carried at cost,
which approximates fair value. All short-term, highly liquid investments, including any such
investments purchased with funds on deposit with bond trustees, otherwise qualifying as cash
equivalents or restricted cash equivalents, within TJU’s investments and assets whose use is
limited are treated as investments, at fair value and are therefore excluded from Cash and cash
equivalents in the Statements of Cash Flows.

Short-term investments

Investments classified as short-term investments are available to fund current operations as
needed and exclude quasi-endowment funds, donor restricted endowment funds (including
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts administered by third parties), investments held under
split-interest agreements and investments subject to the equity method.

Charitable Medical Care Provided

TJU provides medically necessary services to all patients regardless of their ability to pay. Some
patients qualify for charity care based on policies established by TJU and are therefore not
responsible for payment for all or a part of their healthcare services. These policies allow for
the provision of free or discounted care in circumstances where requiring payment would
impose financial hardship on the patient.

TJU maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care provided. These records
include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished. Such amounts have
been excluded from net patient service revenue. Management estimates that the cost of charity
care provided by TJU was $37.1 million and $58.4 million for the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively. The estimated costs of providing charity services are based on a
calculation which applies a ratio of costs to charges to the gross uncompensated charges
associated with providing care to charity patients. The ratio of cost to charges is calculated
based on the TJU total expenses divided by gross charges.



Thomas Jefferson University
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Net Patient Service Revenue
Net patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
TJU expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care.

TJU determines the transaction price based on gross charges for services provided, less
contractual adjustments provided to third-party payers based upon agreements, discounts
provided to uninsured patients pursuant to TJU’s policies, and implicit price concessions
provided to uninsured patients and patients with insurance that are responsible for co-pay and/or
deductible amounts. TJU determines its estimate of implicit price concessions based upon
historical collection experience using a portfolio approach as a practical expedient. Subsequent
changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to net
patient service revenues in the period of change.

TJU determines performance obligations based upon the nature of the services provided. Net
patient service revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. TJU recognizes
revenues for performance obligations satisfied over time based on actual charges incurred in
relation to total expected charges. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate
to patients in our hospitals receiving inpatient acute care services or patients receiving services
in our outpatient centers. TJU measures the performance obligation from admission into the
hospital, or the commencement of an outpatient service, to point when there are no further
services required for the patient, which is generally at the time of discharge or completion of
the outpatient services. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is
generally recognized when goods are provided to our patients and customers in a retail setting
(for example, pharmaceuticals and medical equipment) and TJU does not believe it is required
to provide additional goods or services to the patient.

As substantially all of TJU’s patient service performance obligations relate to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, TJU has elected to not disclose the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied
performance obligations referred to above are primarily related to inpatient acute care services
at the end of the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally
completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks after
the end of the reporting period.

Net patient service revenue includes estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition
of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and are adjusted
in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 40.9% and
12.9%, respectively, and 39.8% and 12.0%, respectively of net patient service revenue in 2021
and 2020, respectively. Most payments to TJU from the Medicare and Medicaid programs for
inpatient hospital services are made on a prospective basis. Under these programs, payments

9



Thomas Jefferson University
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

are made at a pre-determined specific rate for each discharge based on a patient’s
diagnosis. Additional payments are made to TJU teaching and disproportionate share hospitals,
as well as for cases that have unusually high costs. Laws governing the Medicare and Medicaid
programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Services billed to the Medicare program
are subject to external review for both medical necessity and billing compliance. Medicare cost
reports for all years, except 2011, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 have been audited and final settled
as of June 30, 2021. No significant adjustments are expected. In addition, TJU received funds
from the Philadelphia Hospital Assessment program and the Medical Assistance Modernization
Act-Quality Care Assessment program in the amount of $175.7 million and $167.3 million in
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are recorded in net patient service revenue. TJU paid taxes in
respect to these programs amounting to $114.7 million and $118.3 million in 2021 and 2020,
respectively, and are recorded in other operating expenses. Both programs were designed to
provide supplemental funding for licensed acute care hospitals with the Philadelphia Hospital
Assessment program specifically designated for hospital emergency services.

TJU has also entered into agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment to TJU
under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from
established charges, prospectively determined daily rates and capitated rates. Revenue from
Blue Cross and Aetna USHC amounted to 26.1% and 10.5%, respectively, and 26.2% and
11.2%, respectively, of TIU’s net patient service revenue in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Grants and Contracts

Grants and contracts revenue primarily represents research activity sponsored by governmental
and private sources. TJU’s primary source of federal sponsored support is the Department of
Health and Human Services. In 2021 and 2020, revenue earned from federal sources totaled
$125.7 million and $86.7 million, respectively. Facilities and administrative costs recovered
on federally sponsored programs are generally based on predetermined rates negotiated with
the Federal Government while recovery on all other sponsored projects is based on rates
negotiated with the respective sponsor. Funds received for sponsored research activity are
subject to audit. Based upon information currently available, management believes that any
liability resulting from such audits will not materially affect the financial position or operations
of TJU.

Tuition and Fees

Tuition and fees revenue is recognized in the fiscal year in which the academic programs are
delivered. Tuition and fees received in advance of services to be rendered are reported as
deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets. TJU provides financial aid to eligible
students in the form of institutional scholarships, loans and employment during the academic
year. Tuition and fees have been reduced by certain institutional grants and scholarships in the
amount of $74.8 million and $69.4 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

10



Thomas Jefferson University
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to donate cash and other assets, are recognized
at fair value on the date of receipt, recognized as revenue in the period received and are reported
as increases in the appropriate net asset category based on with or without donor restrictions.
Pledges received which are to be paid in future periods, and contributions restricted by the
donor for specific purposes are reported as net assets with donor restriction support. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or stipulated purpose restriction
is accomplished, net assets with donor restriction are reclassified to net assets without donor
restriction.

Collections

TJU capitalizes works of art, historical treasures, or similar assets (collectively, Collections).
Collections are recorded at fair value at the date of the contribution. Collections of
approximately $5.7 million are included in other noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance
sheets at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. The fair value of all debt and equity securities with a readily
determinable fair value are based on quotations obtained from national securities exchanges.
The alternative investments, which are not readily marketable, are carried at estimated fair
values as provided by the investment managers. As a practical expedient, TJU is permitted
under the Fair Value Measurement standard to estimate the fair value of an investment in an
investment company at the measurement date using the reported net asset value (NAV).
Adjustment is required if TJU expects to sell the investment at a value other than NAV or if the
NAV is not calculated in accordance with US generally accepted accounting principles (US
GAAP). TJU’s investments are valued based on the most current NAV adjusted for cash flows
when the reported NAV is not at the measurement date. This amount represents fair value of
these investments at June 30, 2021 and 2020. TJU performs additional procedures including
due diligence reviews on its alternative investments and other procedures with respect to the
capital account or NAV provided to ensure conformity and compliance with valuation
procedures in place, the ability to redeem at NAV at the TJU measurement date and existence
of certain redemption restrictions at the measurement date. TJU reviews the values as provided
by the investment managers and believes that the carrying amount of these investments is a
reasonable estimate of fair value. Because alternative investments are not readily marketable,
their estimated values are subject to uncertainty and therefore may differ from the value that
would have been used had a ready market for such investments existed.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has not adopted the Uniform Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UMIFA) or the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA). Rather, the Pennsylvania Act governs the investment, use and management of
TJU’s endowment funds. The Pennsylvania Act allows a nonprofit to elect to appropriate for
expenditure an investment policy that seeks the long-term preservation of the real value of the
investments. In accordance with the Pennsylvania Act, the objectives of TJU’s investment
policy is to provide a level of spendable income which is sufficient to meet the current and
future budgetary requirements of TJU and which is consistent with the goal of protecting the
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purchasing power of the investments. As a result of the negative financial impact to nonprofit
organizations from COVID-19, the Pennsylvania Act was amended to permit nonprofit
organizations to increase the calculation of spendable income from endowment funds up to 10%
of the calculated three year average of the endowment market value for fiscal years ending
within 2020, 2021 and 2022. For 2021, TJU’s calculation of spendable income for endowment
funds was based on 10% of a calculated three year average. For 2020, the calculation of the
spendable income for endowment funds was based on 75% of the prior year spendable income
and 25% of the calculated two year average of the endowment market value multiplied by
4.75%:; the sum of which was adjusted by an inflation factor.

TJU’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily
of cash and cash equivalents and investments. These funds are held in various high-quality
financial institutions managed by TJU personnel and outside advisors. TJU maintains its cash
and cash equivalents in financial institutions, which at times exceed federally insured limits.

Assets Held by Affiliated Foundations

The Methodist Hospital Foundation (“MHF”’) and Magee Rehabilitation Hospital Foundation
(“MRHF”) are separate entities not under the control of TJU. MHF and MRHF accept gifts
and bequests and engage in fundraising activities for the benefit of Methodist Hospital and
Magee, respectively. The Board of Trustees of MHF and MRHF, at their sole discretion, are
authorized to contribute funds to Methodist Hospital and Magee, respectively.

While the sole purpose of MHF and MRHF are to support Methodist Hospital and Magee, this
accounting treatment does not imply that MHF and MRHF assets or investment income are
those of TJU. The consolidated balance sheets do not reflect or establish the legal relationship,
agency or otherwise, between MHF, MRHF and TJU, or any right to assets owned by MHF and
MRHF. The by-laws of MHF and MRHF provide that all assets they hold shall not be subject
to attachments, execution, or sequestration for any debt, obligation or liability of TJU or any
other person or entity. In particular, MHF and MRHF are not party to or obligated by any debt
instrument of TJU, and assets owned by MHF and MRHF, are not subject to the lien of any
such debt instrument.

Underlying investments held by MHF and MRHF with restrictions benefiting only Methodist
Hospital and Magee, respectively, are presented in the consolidated balance sheets as follows
(in thousands):

2021 2020
Methodist Hospital Foundation $12,249 $9,970
Magee Rehabilitation Hospital Foundation 38,421 30,213
Total $50,670 $40,183
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Split Interest Agreements

TJU’s split-interest agreements consist of charitable gift annuities, pooled income funds,
charitable remainder trusts and charitable lead trusts. Contribution revenue for charitable gift
annuities and charitable remainder trusts is recognized at the date the agreement is established,
net of the liability recorded for the present value of the estimated future payments. Contribution
revenue for pooled income funds is recognized upon establishment of the agreement at the fair
value of the estimated future receipts discounted for the estimated time period to complete the
agreement.

Loans Receivable from Students

Many students receive financial aid that consists of scholarship grants, work-study
opportunities and student loans. TJU participates in various federal revolving loan programs, in
addition to administering institutional loan programs. Student loan programs are funded by
donor contributions, other institutional sources, and governmental programs, primarily the
Federal Perkins Loan Program.

The amounts received from the federal government’s portion of federal loan programs are
ultimately refundable to the federal government and are reported as a liability on TJU’s
consolidated balance sheets as federal student loan advances. Determination of the fair value
of student loans receivable is not practicable.

Student loans receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, consists of the following at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

2021 2020
Direct student loans $20,989 $21,694
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,577) (4,640)
Net 16,412 17,054
Federally-sponsored student loans 4,642 5,003
Total $21,054 $22,057

TJU assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts related to direct student loans
receivable by performing evaluations of the student loan portfolio, including a review of the
aging of the student loan receivable balances and of the default rate by loan program in
comparison to prior years. The level of allowance is adjusted based on the results of this
analysis. The federally-sponsored student loans receivable represents amounts due from current
and former students under various Federal Government loan programs. For direct student loans
it is TJU’s policy to reserve 100% of a loan when the loan is delinquent 2 years or more; a
reserve of 85% is recorded for loans delinquent more than 270 days and less than 2 years. TJU
considers the allowance recorded at June 30, 2021 and 2020 to be reasonable and adequate to
absorb potential credit losses inherent in the student loan portfolio.
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Land, Buildings, and Equipment, net

Land, buildings, and equipment are carried at cost on the date of acquisition or fair value on the
date of donation in the case of gifts. Depreciation expense is computed on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, excluding land. All gifts of land, buildings, and
equipment are recorded as unrestricted non-operating activities unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Interest expense on borrowed funds
used for construction, net of interest income earned on unexpended amounts, is capitalized
through the completion of construction.

Leases

TJU leases property and equipment under finance and operating leases. TJU determines
whether an arrangement is a lease at inception. For leases with terms greater than 12 months,
TJU records the related right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities at the present value of
lease payment over the term. The determination of lease payments factors in rental escalation
clauses and options to extend or terminate the lease, if the clauses are reasonably certain to be
exercised. TJU separates the lease and non-lease components of contracts. TJU’s incremental
borrowing rate, which is based on information available at the adoption date for existing leases
and the commencement date for leases commencing after the adoption date, is used to determine
the present value of lease of payments.

Operating leases are included in ROU assets, current portion of operating lease obligations and
operating lease obligations on the consolidated balance sheets. Operating lease expense is
recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in the other operating
expense line on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without
donor restrictions.

Finance leases are included in land, buildings and equipment, net, current portion of long term
obligations and long term obligations on the consolidated balance sheets. Amortization of
finance leases is included in depreciation expense on the consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets without donor restrictions.

Goodwill

Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets
acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified and separately
recognized. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. The determination of the estimated fair value of
net assets acquired requires management’s judgment and often involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, TJU performed its required annual impairment
test of goodwill. Beginning in March 2020, TJU’s operations were significantly impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic. All elective healthcare procedures and office visits were canceled as
a result of governmental stay-at-home orders that were in effect in the region into June 2020.
Projections for fiscal year 2021 reflect a continued reduction in patient services volume from
pre-COVID-19 levels. The impairment test showed that the fair value was lower than the
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carrying value resulting in a $161.3 million goodwill impairment charge in 2020. The fair value
was determined using a discounted cash flow method.

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 is as
follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Beginning balance:
Goodwill $0 $163,704
Accumulated impairment losses - (772)
- 162,932
Goodwill acquired 137 47
Sale of Garden State Radiology Network - (1,723)
Impairment losses - (161,256)
Ending balance:
Goodwill 137 162,028
Accumulated impairment losses - (162,028)
$137 $0
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

New Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02. Leases
(topic 842) which requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for the
leases classified as operating leases under previous accounting guidance. Effective July 1,
2020, TJU adopted the provision using a modified retrospective approach in conjunction with
subsequent ASU’s aimed at providing clarification and transition relief. TJU elected to utilize
practical expedients made available, including the package of practical expedients, not to
reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease, the lease classification, and indirect cost for
any existing leases and to use hindsight with respect in determining the lease term. While the
adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not have a material impact on the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction or the consolidated statements of
cash flows, it did have a material impact on the consolidated balance sheet through the recording
of the lease obligations of $349.5 million and the related ROU assets of $313.0 million for
leases in effect at July 1, 2020.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04 which provides temporary optional guidance to
ease the potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform due to the discontinuation of
the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"). The amendments apply to contracts, hedges
and other transactions affected by reference rate reform due to reference to LIBOR or another
reference rate expected to be discontinued. The pronouncement is effective immediately and
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can be applied through June 30, 2023. Management is currently assessing the implications of
the potential adoption of this accounting standard.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Aria Health, a wholly controlled subsidiary of TJU, entered into an agreement dated December
16, 2019 with Temple to purchase Temple’s membership interests in Health Partners Plans,
Inc. Health Partners Plans, Inc. is a health maintenance organization that offers Medicaid,
Medicare and Children’s Health Insurance Program plans to members in Southeastern
Pennsylvania. The finalization of the purchase of Temple’s membership interest is subject to a
number of closing conditions, including the approval of Health Partners Plans, Inc. TJU
anticipates to close this transaction before the end of 2021.

On October 4, 2021, pursuant to the terms of an integration agreement, TJU became the sole
corporate member of Albert Einstein Healthcare Network (“EHN”). EHN is a not for profit
healthcare organization located in Pennsylvania. TJU acquired all of the assets and liabilities of
EHN and transferred no consideration. The TJU board was reconstituted to include members
designated by EHN. This business combination will be accounted for as an acquisition. The
acquisition of EHN is intended to enhance access to high quality, cost effective care to the
communities served by both organizations and to enhance the educational and research mission
of TJU.

3. NET ASSETS

Net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

2021 2020
Without Donor  With Donor Without Donor  With Donor
Detail of net assets Restrictions ~ Restrictions Total Restrictions ~ Restrictions Total
Operating $2,501,889  $198,637  $2,700,526 $2,110435  $181912  $2,292,347
Capital gifts - 28,648 28,648 - 13,348 13,348
Student loan funds 24472 29,575 54,047 21,650 25213 46,863
Endowment funds 905,329 627834 1,533,163 413,630 527395 941,025
Assets held by affiliated foundations - 50,670 50,670 - 40,183 40,183
Deferred giving - 15,864 15,864 - 9,143 9,143
Total $3431,690  $951,228  $4,382918 $2,545715  $797,194  $3,342,909
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4. ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

Assets whose use is limited presented in the consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2021 and
2020 consist of the following (in thousands):

2021 2020

Held by trustee under indenture agreement $71,464 $283,411
Women's Board and Medical Staff funds 908 881
Restricted for capital purposes 11,752 12,942
Deferred compensation fund 672 1,562
Other 1,571 1,686

Total $86,367 $300,482

Less current portion (737) (791)

Noncurrent portion $85,630 $299,691

5. INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the consolidated balance sheets under the following classifications
(in thousands):

2021 2020
Short-term investments $2,531,594 $2,094,997
Assets whose use is limited, current 737 791
Long-term investments 1,699,470 1,104,999
Assets whose use is limited, noncurrent 85,630 299,691

$4,317,431 $3,500,478
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A summary of investments at June 30, 2021 and 2020 is as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $157,044 $231,816
Equity securities 21,159 31,153
Fixed income securities 597,004 317,512
Funds:

Global equity 1,570,316 1,271,799

Fixed income 1,070,370 884,518

Real estate 137,356 122,032

Other mutual funds 34,481 29,244
Private equity 324,941 233,457
Real estate 3,309 3,100
Hedge funds 102,255 100,554
External trusts 145,052 119,660
Investments subject to equity method and other 154,144 155,633

$4,317,431 $3,500,478

Most private investment funds (private equity, real asset funds) are structured as closed-end,
commitment-based investment funds where TJU commits a specified amount of capital upon
inception of the fund (i.e., committed capital) which is then drawn down over a specified period
of the fund's life. Such funds generally do not provide redemption options for investors and,
subsequent to final closing, do not permit subscriptions by new or existing investors.
Accordingly, TJU generally holds interests in such funds for which there is no active market,
although in some situations, a transaction may occur in the "secondary market" where an
investor purchases a limited partner’s existing interest and remaining commitment. The fund
managers may value the underlying private investment based on an appraised value, discounted
cash flow, industry comparable or some other method. TJU values these limited partnerships
at NAV.

Unlike private investment funds, hedge funds are generally open-end funds as they typically
offer subscription and redemption options to investors. The frequency of such subscriptions or
redemptions is dictated by such fund's governing documents. The amount of liquidity provided
to investors in a particular fund is generally consistent with the liquidity and risk associated
with the underlying portfolio (i.e., the more liquid the investments in the portfolio, the greater
the liquidity provided to the investors). The fund managers invest in a variety of securities
which may not be quoted in an active market. Illiquid investments may be valued based on
appraised value, discounted cash flow, industry comparable or some other method.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative
of a net realized value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while TJU believes its
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valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

TJU’s direct investments in equity and fixed income securities are considered liquid assets
because they are traded on established markets with enough participants to absorb sale
transactions without materially impacting the current price of the asset. The underlying assets
in TJU’s investments in equity and fixed income funds are traded on established markets with
enough participants to absorb sale transactions without materially impacting the current
price. The funds are priced daily and provide next day availability on all transaction
requests. TJU’s investment in real asset funds provide for monthly liquidity on transaction
requests.

Private equity investments have limited liquidity or redemption options. Liquidity for private
investments can be accomplished via a secondary sale transaction. When available,
distributions typically take place on a quarterly basis. TJU has made commitments to various
private equity and real asset limited partnerships. The total amount of unfunded commitments
is $454.1 million and $293.3 million at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. TJU expects
these funds to be called over the next 3 to 5 years (in thousands):

2021 2020
Private equity $441,390 $279,992
Real estate 12,670 13,336
$454,060 $293,328

Hedge funds provide quarterly liquidity with 60 to 90 days’ notice prior to the quarter’s end
limiting TJU’s ability to respond quickly to changes in market conditions. Liquidity of
individual hedge funds vary based on various factors and may include "gates", "holdbacks" and
"side pockets" imposed by the manager of the hedge fund, as well as redemption fees which

may also apply. Depending on the redemption options available, it may be possible that the
reported NAV represents fair value based on observable data such as ongoing redemption
and/or subscription activity. In the cases of a holdback, TJU considers the significance of the
holdback, its impact on the overall valuation and the associated risk that the holdback amount
will not be fully realized based on a prior history of adjustments to the initially reported NAV.

For those private equity, real estate limited partnerships, or hedge-fund of fund transactions
where valuations dated on the last business day of the calendar year are available, the valuations
will be based on the most recent capital account statement (monthly/quarterly), adjusted for
interim cash flow activity (contributions, distributions, fees).
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Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts, which are administered by independent trustees, are
mainly comprised of domestic and international equity securities and domestic fixed income

securities.

TJU accounts for investments in the following entities under the equity method: Five Pointe
Professional Liability Insurance Company (“Five Pointe”) (50% owned joint venture insurance
entity); Mountain Laurel Risk Retention Group, Inc. (“MLRRG”) (50% owned joint venture
insurance entity); Delaware Valley Accountable Care Organization (“DVACO”) (50% owned
joint venture); MLJH, LLC (50% owned joint venture); Health Partners Plans (“HPP”) (25%
membership interest joint venture) and Fresenius Medical Care Voorhees, LLC (“FMCV”)
(30% owned joint venture). A summary of investments subject to the equity method and other

investments is as follows at June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

2021 2020

Equity method:
Five Pointe $42,902 $44.,810
MLRRG 4,207 4,327
HPP 38,081 39,152
DVACO 5,309 6,543
MLJH, LLC 31,118 30,686
FMCV, LLC 14,158 15,782
Other equity method investments 5,749 3,739
Other 12,620 10,594
$154,144 $155,633

A summary of investments held under split-interest agreements is as follows at June 30, 2021

and 2020 (in thousands):

Charitable gift annuities
Pooled income funds
Charitable lead trusts
Charitable remainder trusts

20

2021 2020
$15,791 $12,979
998 918
777 929
10,702 5,598
$28,268 $20,424
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Investment income, realized gains and unrealized gains included in the consolidated statements
of operations and changes in net assets are comprised of the following in 2021 and 2020 (in
thousands):

2021 2020
Investment income included in operating income:
Interest and dividends $7,341 $19,670
Endowment payout 62,774 21,402
Net realized gains on sales of investments - 1,247
DVACO (3,365) (2,824)
HPP 6,076 12,149
MLJH, LLC 2,179 2,151
Other joint ventures 2,469 700
77,474 54,495
Investment income included in nonoperating income:
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) 540,797 81,754
Interest and dividends 173 195
Endowment payout (62,774) (21,402)
478,196 60,547
Total $555,670 $115,042

6. ENDOWMENT FUNDS

TJU’s endowments consist of approximately 1,060 individual funds established for a variety of
purposes. The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. Net assets associated with
each of these groups of funds are classified and reported based upon the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. The University reports all endowment investments at fair value.
Cash equivalents in endowments are treated as investments.

At June 30, 2021, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the
following (in thousands):
Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total
Donor-restricted funds $0 $627,834 $627,834
Quasi-endowment funds 905,329 - 905,329
Total funds $905,329 $627,834 $1,533,163
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Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, consisted of the

following (in thousands):
Without Donor ~ With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $413,630 $527,395 $941,025
Investment returns 151,488 113,959 265,447
Contributions 510 13,622 14,132
Appropriation of assets for expenditure (62,774) (27,835) (90,609)
Transfers of University resources and other 402,475 693 403,168
Endowment net assets, end of year $905,329 $627,834 $1,533,163

At June 30, 2020, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the

following (in thousands):
Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total
Donor-restricted funds $0 $527,395 $527,395
Quasi-endowment funds 413,630 - 413,630
Total funds $413,630 $527,395 $941,025

Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, consisted of the

following (in thousands):
Without Donor ~ With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $419,352 $534,825 $954,177
Investment returns 9,574 8,713 18,287
Contributions 263 10,683 10,946
Appropriation of assets for expenditure (21,113) (23,280) (44,393)
Transfers of University resources and other 5,554 (3,546) 2,008
Endowment net assets, end of year $413,630 $527,395 $941,025

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor requires TJU to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration. Shortfalls of this nature are classified as a reduction of donor-restricted net
assets and were $0.6 million and $2.1 million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
These shortfalls resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after the
investment of new permanently restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain
programs that was deemed prudent by TJU.
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIQUIDITY RESOURCES

TJU’s financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date for general
expenditure are as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $301,454 $801,018

Accounts receivable 583,790 493,372

Pledge payments available for operations 15,030 15,212

Short-term investments 2,326,501 1,887,885

Subsequent year's endowment payout 106,207 71,646
Total financial assets available within one year 3,332,982 3,269,133
Liquidity resources:

Bank lines of credit 547,000 377,300
Total financial assets and liquidity resources

available within one year $3,879,982 $3,646,433

TJU’s endowment funds consist of donor-restricted and quasi-endowment funds. Income from
donor-restricted endowment funds is restricted for specific purposes and therefore, is not
available for general expenditures. Although TJU does not intend to spend from its quasi-
endowment funds in excess of the endowment payout amount calculated pursuant to its
spendable income policy described in Note 1, additional amounts from its quasi-endowment
could be made available with Board approval.

As part of TJU’s liquidity management, it has a practice to structure its financial assets in a
manner to be available to satisfy general expenditures and other obligations as they come due.
To manage unanticipated liquidity needs, TJU had available unsecured lines of credit from
various banks of $638.0 million and $638.3 million at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
under which there was borrowing of $91.0 million and $261.0 million at June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that TJU has the ability to access at the measurement date;

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;
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Level 3 Inputs that are not currently observable.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuations techniques and broadly refer to the
assumption that market participants use to make valuation decisions. An investments level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable” requires
significant judgment. The categorization of an investment within the hierarchy is based upon
the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to TJU’s
perceived risk of that instrument.

Level 1 - Investments, whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, are
therefore classified within Level 1. Typically, securities traded on the NYSE, AMEX,
NASDAQ and other major exchanges will be classified as Level 1. These assets include active
listed equities, certain U.S. government obligations, mutual funds and certain money market
securities.  For investments regularly traded on any recognized securities or commodities
exchange, the closing price on such exchange (or, if applicable, as reported on the consolidated
transactions reporting system) on the last trading date at the end of the fiscal year is used. In
the case of securities regularly traded in the over-the-counter market, the closing bid quotations
for long positions and the closing asked quotation for short positions on the trading date ending
on or preceding the end of the fiscal year is used.

Level 1 - Liquidity — Daily based on quoted market value at time of transaction or at daily NAV.

Level 2 - Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within Level 2. They include investments in common trust
equity and fixed income funds, corporate grade bonds, high yield bonds and certain mortgage
products. These assets are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets or dealer
quotations and are categorized as Level 2. There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2
during 2021 and 2020.

Level 2 - Liquidity — Daily based on quoted market value at time of transaction or at daily NAV.

Level 3 - Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they
trade infrequently or not at all. Level 3 instruments include externally held trust funds.

Level 3 - Liquidity — No liquidity available as the assets are mainly comprised of donor

restricted externally held trust funds of which TJU has a perpetual interest in the annual income
stream.
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The following table presents the short term and long term investments, and assets whose use is
limited carried on the consolidated balance sheets by level within the valuation hierarchy or
NAYV as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $157,044 $0 $0 $0 $157,044
Equity securities 5,368 15,791 - - 21,159
Fixed income securities 63,018 515,006 - 18,980 597,004
Funds:

Global equity 43,063 - - 1,527,253 1,570,316

Fixed income - - - 1,070,370 1,070,370

Real asset - 5,939 - 131,417 137,356

Other mutual funds 34,481 - - - 34,481
Private equity - - - 324,941 324,941
Real estate - - - 3,309 3,309
Hedge funds - - - 102,255 102,255
External trusts - - 145,052 - 145,052
Total $302,974 $536,736 $145,052 $3,178,526 $4,163,287

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $231,816 $0 $0 $0 $231,816
Equity securities 15,674 12,979 - 2,500 31,153
Fixed income securities 152,596 146,415 - 18,501 317,512
Funds:

Global equity 34,645 - - 1,237,154 1,271,799

Fixed income - - - 884,518 884,518

Real asset - 3,553 - 118,479 122,032

Other mutual funds 29,244 - - - 29,244
Private equity - - - 233,457 233,457
Real estate - - - 3,100 3,100
Hedge finds - - - 100,554 100,554
External trusts - - 119,660 - 119,660
Total $463,975 $162,947 $119,660 $2,598,263 $3,344,845

Investments not subject to fair value leveling or fair value at NAV at June 30, 2021 and 2020
totaled $154.1 million and $155.6 million, respectively.

The fair value of TJU’s interest rate swaps related to its debt obligations are based on third-
party valuations independent of the counterparties. As the fair values of interest rate swaps are
determined based on inputs that are readily available or can be derived from information
available in public markets, TJU has categorized interest rate swaps as Level 2.
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The following table presents the other liabilities carried on the consolidated balance sheets by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV 2021
Interest rate hedges $0 $34,919 $0 $0 $34,919

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV 2020
Interest rate hedges $0 $71,788 $0 $0 $71,788

The following tables include a roll-forward of the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2021
and 2020 (in thousands) for external trust investments classified within Level 3.

2021 2020
Beginning balance $119,660 $132,931
Unrealized gain/(loss), net 25,544 (4,606)
Transfers (152) (8,665)
Ending balance $145,052 $119,660

9. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

A summary of pledges receivable is as follows at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively (in
thousands):

2021 2020
Unconditional promises expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $31,165 $31,967
One year to five years 53,625 46,617
Over five years 86,213 86,820
171,003 165,404
Less: unamortized discount and allowance
for doubtful accounts (36,316) (35,942)
$134,687 $129,461

The discount rate ranges from 0.4% to 5.5%. TJU’s largest pledge comprises 43% and 47% of
the pledge receivable at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

At June 30, 2021, TJU was the recipient of a conditional pledge of $70.0 million for the

construction of a building. This conditional pledge is not included as an asset in the
consolidated balance sheets.
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10. LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of land, buildings and equipment is as follows at June 30, 2021 and 2020,

respectively (in thousands):

Land and land improvements

Buildings and building improvements
Equipment

Leasehold improvements

Construction in progress

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total land, buildings and equipment, net

2021 2020
$202,487 $204,634
3,017,372 2,781,505
2,384,850 2,164,907
177,251 174,412
421,622 528,812
(3,137,338) (2,928,902)
$3,066,244 $2,925,367

TJU uses straight-line depreciation over the assets’ estimated lives, which are as follows:

Land improvements

Buildings and building improvements
Equipment

Leasehold improvements

10-20 years
18-40 years
3-15 years
5-20 years

Depreciation expense is $263.0 million and $261.9 million at June 30, 2021 and 2020,

respectively.
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11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A summary of long-term obligations is as follows at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively (in
thousands):

Final Interest Rate at
Maturity June 30, 2021 2021 2020
Revenue bonds:
Fixed rate obligations:
1993 Series A Revenue Bonds 2022 6.00% $5,730 $5,930
Unamortized issue costs (18) (37)
2012 Series Revenue Bonds 2042 4.00% - 5.00% 35,895 37,155
Unamortized premium and issue costs 1,539 1,679
2012 Series A Revenue Bonds 2032 3.25% - 5.00% 29,210 35,930
Unamortized premium and issue costs 1,318 1,635
2015 Series A Revenue Bonds 2051 3.00% - 5.25% 301,805 301,805
Unamortized premium and issue costs 18,511 19,413
2017 Series A Revenue Bonds 2048 3.81% - 5.50% 262,270 262,270
Unamortized premium and issue costs 11,318 11,987
2018 Series A Revenue Bonds 2050 4.00% - 5.00% 353,370 353,370
Unamortized premium and issue costs 21,855 24,419
2018 Series B Revenue Bonds 2030 3.28% - 3.88% 34,140 34,140
Unamortized issue costs (181) 217)
2019 Series A Revenue Bonds 2052 4.00% - 5.00% 449,745 449,745
Unamortized premium and issue costs 35,828 39,415
Total fixed rate obligations 1,562,335 1,578,639
Variable rate obligations:
2015 Series B Revenue Bonds 2046 0.27% 60,000 60,000
Unamortized issue costs (461) (481)
2015 Series C Revenue Bonds 2042 0.82% 33,670 34,495
Unamortized issue costs (100) (108)
2015 Series D Revenue Bonds 2042 0.89% 33,435 34,250
Unamortized issue costs (99) (108)
2015 Series E Revenue Bonds 2042 0.83% 33,670 34,490
Unamortized issue costs (100) (108)
2015 Series F Revenue Bonds 2042 0.89% 33,435 34,250
Unamortized issue costs (99) (108)
2015 Series G Revenue Bonds 2042 0.84% 20,085 20,575
Unamortized issue costs (60) (65)
2015 Series H Revenue Bonds 2042 1.34% 27,845 28,525
Unamortized issue costs (86) 93)
2017 Series B Revenue Bonds 2051 0.27% 50,565 50,565
Unamortized issue costs (485) (502)
2017 Series C Revenue Bonds 2051 0.74% 50,000 50,000
Unamortized issue costs 271) (281)
2018 Series C Revenue Bonds 2052 0.80% 100,000 100,000
Unamortized issue costs (799) (826)
2018 Series D Revenue Bonds 2051 0.27% 49,950 49,950
Unamortized issue costs (397) (413)
Total variable rate obligations 489,698 494,007
Total Revenue bonds 2,052,033 2,072,646
Line of credit 2022 0.44% 91,000 261,000
Finance lease obligations 2037 23,572 14,356
Other 2037 139 159
Total long-term debt obligations $2,166,744 $2,348,161
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TJU is a party to the Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture (the “MTI”), dated as of
February 1, 2017 and effective on December 1, 2017, by and among TJU, each other Member
of the Obligated Group (as described below) and Master Trustee. The MTI provides for the
issuance from time to time of obligations as a joint and severable obligation of each Member
of the Obligated Group, evidencing or securing particular indebtedness.

To secure its payment obligations under the MTI, each Member of the Obligated Group has
granted to the Master Trustee for the equal and ratable benefit of the holders of all obligations
issued and outstanding under the MTI (other than subordinated obligations) a first lien on and
security interest in the gross revenues of each Member of the Obligated Group.

The Members of the Obligated Group consist of the following: TJU, TJUHS, TJUH, JUP,
Abington Health, Abington Memorial Hospital, Abington Health Foundation, Lansdale
Hospital, Aria Health System, Aria Health, Philadelphia University, Kennedy Health System,
Kennedy Health Facilities, Inc., Kennedy University Hospital, Inc., Kennedy Medical Group
Practice, PC and Magee.

TJU and each other Member of the Obligated Group have agreed to comply with certain
financial and operational covenants contained in the MTI, certain continuing covenant
agreements (the “CCAs”) associated with several series of bonds as well as a standby letter of
credit agreement (the SBLOC”) and a revolving credit agreement (the “Revolver”, and
collectively with the CCAs and the SBLOC, the “Credit Agreements”). TJU was in compliance
with the covenants in the Credit Agreements at June 30, 2021.

Driven primarily by the impact of COVID-19 on TJU’s operations, TJU was not in compliance
with the Debt Service Coverage Ratio (as defined in the MTI, “DSCR”) as set forth in the MTI
at June 30, 2020. The DSCR required TJU to generate net revenue (as defined in the MTI) of
at least equal to 110% of debt service requirements (as defined in the MTI) for such period. To
support management’s recovery actions already initiated, necessitated by the COVID-19
pandemic, and to satisfy MTI requirements, TJU engaged an Independent Consultant (as
defined in the MTT) to advise TJU on possible steps to enhance future revenues, net of expenses,
in order to achieve the required DSCR in the future; and TJU is considering such
recommendations, all in accordance with the MTI requirements, which further supplement
management’s actions as part of its overall recovery plans. In addition, the Liquid Unrestricted
Net Assets (as defined in the MTI, “LUNA”) was greater than 25% of outstanding Long-Term
Indebtedness (as defined in the MTT) at June 30, 2020. As such, TJU remained in compliance
with the requirements of the MTI at June 30, 2020.

TJU was in compliance with the DSCR and LUNA requirements at June 30, 2021.
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Maturities for long-term debt are as follows (in thousands):

Revenue Bonds Finance Lease
and Other Obligations Total
2022 21,030 4,703 25,733
2023 113,390 4,168 117,558
2024 24275 4291 28,566
2025 27,805 3,919 31,724
2026 30,620 3,042 33,662
Thereafter 1,838,700 3,449 1,842,149

12. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
TJU entered into derivative transactions for the purpose of reducing the impact of fluctuations

in interest rates and hedging interest rate risk. The fair value of these derivative instruments at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 in the consolidated balance sheets is as follows (in thousands):
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Notional Notional
Expiration Amount at Amount at |Balance Sheet| Fair Value at | Fair Value at
Date TJU Receives TJU Pays June 30,2021 [June 30,2020 Location | June 30, 2021 | June 30, 2020
67% of United
Expiration States Dollar Noncurrent
2.9809 4,01 2 1
2/1/34 LIBOR (one 980% $64,010 $67,260 Liability $5,576 $7.815
Month)
67% of United
Expiration States Dollar Noncurrent
3.9259 27,385 22,083 26,465 33,913
9/1/45 LIBOR (one & 527, $22, Liability $26, $33,
Month)
68% of United
Expiration States Dollar o Noncurrent
. 2! 4 1
/127 LIBOR (one 3.980% $29,675 $33,950 Liability $3,60: $5,176
Month)
68% of United 68% of United
Expiration States Dollar States Dollar Noncurrent
1,62 481
5/1/27 LIBOR (Five Year| LIBOR (one $51,625 $59,050 Liability ($481) $58
minus 0.293%) Month)
68% of United | 68% of United
Expiration States Dollar States Dollar Noncurrent
5/1/27 LIBOR (Five Year| LIBOR (one $29.675 §33,950 Liability (8245) 378
minus 0.325%) Month)
0 .
Expiration Current
SIFMA 1.447% $0 $441,980 - $0 $46,515
5/1/50 ’ Liability
0 .
Expiration Current
n/a n/a $0 $395,000 o $0 $19,272
12/1/20 Liability ( )
(O] s ogr
Expiration Current
n/a n/a $0 $100,000 . $0 $2,495
12/1/20 Liability ( :

(M TJU entered into a floating-to-fixed interest rate swap and two treasury rate lock agreements. Each agreement was subject
to a cash settlement on or before December 1, 2020, based upon the market value of each respective agreement. On November
12, 2020, TJU terminated each agreement and a net cash settlement payment of $8.2 million was made by TJU.

The LIBOR with a one-month maturity ranged from 0.07% to 0.19% (average rate of 0.13%)
in 2021. The LIBOR rate with the five-year maturity ranged from 0.24% to 1.09% (average rate
of 0.59%) in 2021. Non-operating gains of $24.6 million and non-operating losses of $41.3
million at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are included in the consolidated statements of

operations and changes in net assets for interest rate swap contracts (in thousands).

Change in valuation of interest rate hedges
Net settlement payments with counterparties

Nonoperating gain (loss) on interest rate hedges
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Accumulated losses on interest rate hedges of $34.9 million and $71.8 million at June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively, are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets.

13. LEASE COMMITMENTS

TJU has lease has operating lease obligations primarily for ambulatory facilities, office space
and land expiring through 2099. At June 30, 2021, right-of-use assets recorded on the
consolidated balance sheet are $311.7 million and operating lease obligations are $352.9
million. At June 30, 2021, the weighted average remaining lease term is 13.6 years and the
weighted average discount rate is 2.41%. For the year ended June 30, 2021, rent expense
(included in other operating expenses) was $87.5 million, of which $54.1 million was related
to amortization of the right-of-use assets and operating lease obligations. Rent expense for the
year ended June 30, 2020 was $83.3 million. A summary of future minimum commitments
under operating leases, at June 30, 2021, is as follows (in thousands):

2022 $46,603
2023 43,805
2024 42,342
2025 40,473
2026 35,179
Thereafter 211,896
Total minimum lease payments 420,298
Less imputed interest (67,432)
Net present value of minimum lease payments $352,866

Future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020 (prior to the newly adopted standard) were
as follows (in thousands):

2021 $44,124
2022 42,305
2023 41,960
2024 38,974
2025 35,173
Thereafter 241,653

$444,189

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

TJU has non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for certain full-time employees. The
plans are frozen to new entrants. Certain existing employees that met certain age and years of
service thresholds were eligible to remain in the plans and continue to earn benefits. The Magee
plan is frozen for all participants. Benefits under the non-contributory defined benefit plans are
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based on the employee’s years of service and compensation during the years preceding
retirement. Contributions to the plan are designed to meet the minimum funding requirements
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

The accounting guidance for defined benefit pension plans requires employers to recognize the
overfunded or underfunded projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) of a defined benefit pension
plan as an asset or liability in the balance sheet. The PBO represents the actuarial present value
of benefits attributable to employee service rendered to date, including the effects of estimated
future salary increases. The accounting guidance also requires employers to recognize annual
changes in gains or losses, prior service costs, or other credits that have not been recognized as
a component of net periodic pension cost through net assets without donor restriction. The
calculation of service cost and PBO utilizes a split discount rate approach, where separate
discount rates are calculated for determining each based on their respective expected cash
flows. Additionally, the calculation of the interest cost will begin to utilize an approach that
applies the individual spot rates from the full yield curve against the expected benefit payments
for each year rather than using the single equivalent discount rate applied to all future
years. This change will be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate that is reflected
prospectively. These changes do not impact the calculation of the PBO or the discount rate.

The components of the net pension plan financial position on the consolidated balance sheets
are as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $2,411,088 $2,100,659
Service cost 6,640 39,006
Interest cost 57,263 68,309
Net experience gain 11,831 271,416
Benefits paid (73,043) (68,302)
Plan amendment (10,454) -
Projected benefit obligation, end of year 2,403,325 2,411,088
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 1,623,666 1,621,248
Actual return of plan assets 438,293 23,937
Employer contributions 23,017 46,783
Benefit payments (73,043) (68,302)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year 2,011,933 1,623,666
Plan funded status ($391,392) ($787,422)
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Amounts recognized in net assets without donor restriction consist of (in thousands):

2021 2020
Net actuarial loss $370,032 $760,499
Net unrecognized prior service credit (9,806) -
$360,226 $760,499

The accumulated benefit obligation at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was as follows (in thousands):

2021

2020

Accumulated benefit obligation $2,276,852

$2,263,039

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans for the years ended June 30, 2021 and

2020 were as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Service cost $6,640 $39,006
Interest cost 57,263 68,309
Expected return on plan assets (98,229) (111,409)
Amortization of actuarial loss 62,233 24,233
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) (648) -
Net periodic benefit cost 27,259 20,139
Other changes in plan assets and benefit
obligations recognized in net assets without donor restriction:
Net actuarial (gain)/loss (328,234) 358,888
Amortization of net actuarial loss (62,233) (24,233)
Prior service cost/(credit) (10,454) -
Amortization of prior service (cost)/credit 648 -
Total recognized in net assets without donor restriction (400,273) 334,655
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and
net assets without donor restriction ($373,014) $354,794

The estimated actuarial loss that will be amortized from net assets without donor restriction

during the upcoming fiscal year is $16.3 million.
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The weighted average assumptions used to estimate the June 30 pension obligation were as
follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 3.07% 3.04%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25%1t04.00% 3.25% to 4.00%
Expected return on plan assets 6.14% 6.14%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs were as
follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate - service cost 3.21% 3.90%
Discount rate - interest cost 2.42% 3.32%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25%t04.00%  3.25% to 4.00%
Expected return on plan assets 6.14% 6.98%

A summary of the plans’ targeted and actual asset allocations are as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of
Targeted Plan Assets Plan Assets
Range June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Cash 0-5% 2% 3%
Bonds 25-45% 26% 25%
Global equity 45-65% 63% 62%
Real estate and other 5-10% 9% 9%
100% 100%

The portfolios utilize a long-term asset allocation strategy that allows management to rebalance
the asset allocation back to target levels on a monthly basis. Short-term compliance with the
target ranges can be impacted by the severity of market conditions. The expected long-term
rate of return for the plan’s assets are based on the historical return of each of the above
categories, weighted based on the target allocations for each class. The assets of the defined
benefit pension plan are invested in a manner that is intended to preserve the purchasing power
of the plan’s assets and provide payments to beneficiaries. Thus, a rate of return objective of
inflation plus 5% is targeted.

TJU expects to contribute $23.0 million during fiscal year 2022.
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Projected benefit payments are as follows (in thousands):

2022 $94,154
2023 93,813
2024 98,835
2025 103,493
2026 108,591
Thereafter 589,492
$1,088,378

The following table presents the fair value of plan assets by level within the valuation hierarchy,
as discussed in Note 8, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $2.871 $36,792 $0 $0 $39,663
Equity securities 16 - - - 16
Fixed income securities - 1 - - 1
Funds:

Global equity 58,735 - - 1,208,765 1,267,500

Fixed income 19,386 - - 494,496 513,882

Real assets - - - 108,055 108,055
Private equity - - - 56,336 56,336
Hedge funds - - - 26,480 26,480
Total $81,008 $36,793 $0 $1,894,132 $2,011,933

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $46,037 $0 $0 $0 $46,037
Equity securities 41,023 - - - 41,023
Fixed income securities - 2 - - 2
Funds:

Global equity - - - 969,540 969,540

Fixed income 17,204 - - 395,808 413,012

Real assets - - - 84,688 84,688
Private equity - - - 39,817 39,817
Real estate - - - 398 398
Hedge funds - - - 29,149 29,149
Total $104,264 $2 $0 $1,519,400 $1,623,666
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Retirement benefits are also provided to certain employees through direct payments to various
funds. Employees not subject to TJU’s defined benefit plans may be eligible to participate in
one of the following defined contribution arrangements. TJU’s share of the cost of these
benefits for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was as follows (in thousands):

Plan Description 2021 2020
TJU: Faculty and senior 9% to 13% of eligible compensation based upon age $11,766 $24,241
administrators
TJU: Non-faculty and 4.5% of eligible compensation, plus matching 13,832 26,553
non-union contribution of 25% of the first 6% of employee
contributions
JUP 10% of eligible compensation for physicians and 11,851 18,172

3.5% to 5.5% of eligible compensation for non-
physicians based upon years of service

Abington 2% to 5% of eligible compensation based upon years 3,224 6,649
of service, plus matching contribution of 50% of the
first $2,000 of employee contributions

Aria Matching contribution of 50% of the first 4% of 6,250 9,695
employee contributions plus 1% to 7% based on age
and years of service

Philadelphia University 9% of eligible compensation 1,129 2,419

Kennedy Matching contribution of 50% to 100% of the first 3,755 6,656
4% of employee contributions starting in year 3. For
those that started after 7/1/15, another 2.75% to
4.75% of their annual salary in lieu of a defined
benefit plan

Magee 2% to 4% of eligible compensation, plus matching 841 1,838
contribution of 25% of the first 6% of employee
contributions

$52,648 $96,223
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Participation in Multiemployer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

TJU is a participating employer in The Pension Fund for Hospital and Health Care Employees
— Philadelphia and Vicinity (the Pension Fund), a jointly-trusted multiemployer defined benefit
pension plan. The Pension Fund is operated for the benefit of Chapter 1199C of the American
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (the Union). Information about the
Pension Fund and the TJU’s participation is summarized as follows.

The employer identification number for the Pension Fund is 23-2627428. At the date the
financial statements were issued Form 5500 was not available for the plan year ending in 2021.
TJU’s contribution to the Pension Fund was $7.5 million and $7.9 million for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. The contributions represent approximately 24.4% and 27.9% of the
contributions to the Pension Fund, respectively. A three year collective bargaining agreement
was approved by the Union effective July 1, 2018 and extended an additional year through June
30,2022. TJU contributions as a percentage of covered payroll to the Pension Fund for the year
ending June 30, 2022 will be 21.55%.

The Pension Fund was determined to be in critical status (also referred to as red zone status)
under the Pension Protection Act of 2006 for the plan years beginning January 1, 2020 and
2019. Accordingly, the Pension Fund is subject to a funding improvement plan. The zone status
is based on information that TJU received from the plan and is certified by the plan’s actuary.
Among other factors, plans in the red zone status are generally less than 65% funded.

At January 1, 2020, the most recent date for which such information is available the projected
benefit obligation exceeded plan assets of the Pension Fund by $304.2 million.

15. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY CLAIMS

TJU maintains professional liability insurance under both self-insured and alternative
risk financing insurance programs to fund for their potential professional and general
liability claims. For all self-insured programs TJU accrues for estimated retained risk liability
arising from both asserted and unasserted claims. The estimate of liability is based upon an
analysis of historical claims data as prepared by independent actuaries.

For the Pennsylvania based healthcare providers including Magee, TIUHS (including JUP),
Abington and Aria the primary layer of professional liability coverage is claims made coverage
with limits of $500,000 per medical incident and $2.5 million annual aggregate per hospital,
$1.0 million per medical incident and $2.0 million annual aggregate for JUP, the entity, and
$500,000 per medical incident and $1.5 million annual aggregate per scheduled
physician/resident. This primary layer of coverage is statutorily prescribed in Pennsylvania
for the hospitals and the physicians/residents.

For the New Jersey based healthcare providers including Kennedy Health System the primary
layer of professional liability coverage is claims made coverage with limits of $1.0 million
per medical incident and $3.0 million annual aggregate for the hospitals and per scheduled
physician/resident/midwife.
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In addition, for Kennedy, Magee, TJUHS, Abington and Aria non-healthcare provider entities
are provided with shared limits of $1.0 million per medical incident and $3.0 million annual
aggregate. Also provided on the TTUHS policy are individual limits of $1.0 million per medical
incident and $3.0 million annual aggregate for dentists, as well as physicians/residents
practicing in other states including Delaware, New Jersey and Maryland. For TJU a primary
professional liability layer of coverage of $1.0 million per claim and $3.0 million in the
aggregate is provided.

This primary layer of professional liability coverage is provided by MLRRG for Kennedy,
Magee, TJU and TJUHS and JUP. MLRRG is a licensed captive insurance company qualified
as a risk retention group domiciled in Vermont. TJU is a 50% owner of MLRRG. The
remaining ownership interest is held by another regional healthcare system.

MLRRG is reinsured by a non-profit 501(c) (3) protected cell insurance company, Five Pointe,
domiciled in Delaware. Five Pointe reinsures 100% of the professional liability risks of
Kennedy, Magee, TJU and TJUHS insured by MLRRG pursuant to a reinsurance agreement
between Five Pointe and MLRRG that limits MLRRG’s recourse for payment of any reinsured
claims against Kennedy, Magee, TJU, JUP and/or TJUHS to the assets in the TJUH protected
cell.

For Abington and Aria this primary layer of professional liability coverage is provided by
Cassatt RRG (“CRRG”). CRRG is a licensed captive insurance company qualified as a risk
retention group domiciled in Vermont. CRRG is owned and governed by various regional non-
profit hospitals including a 25% voting interest by Abington and a 25% voting interest by Aria.
CRRG is reinsured by Cassatt Insurance Company Ltd. (“CICL”). CICL is owned by the same
various regional non-profit hospitals and is incorporated as an insurance company under the
laws of Bermuda.

Pennsylvania’s Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error Fund (the “MCARE Fund”)
provides limits of $500,000 per claim and $1.5 million annual aggregate for Magee, TIUHS,
Abington and Aria hospitals and per scheduled Magee, TJUHS, JUP, Abington and Aria
physicians/residents excess of the primary layer of coverage described above. The annual
assessments for MCARE Fund coverage are based on the schedule of occurrence rates approved
by the Insurance Commissioner of Pennsylvania for the Pennsylvania Professional Liability
Joint Underwriting Association multiplied by an annual assessment percentage. This
assessment is recognized as an expense in the period incurred. No provision has been made for
future MCARE Fund assessments as the unfunded portion of the MCARE Fund liability cannot
be reasonably estimated.

For losses in excess of the primary and MCARE layers of coverage TIUHS, including JUP,
retains and accrues for potential liabilities up to a $15.0 million limit for each and every claim
with a $5.0 million/$5.0 million buffer, Kennedy retains and accrues for potential liabilities
up to a $3.0 million limit for each and every claim and Magee retains and accrues for
potential liabilities up to a $1.0 million limit for each and every claim (inclusive of primary
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and MCARE payments). Accruals for the retained amounts are based on actuarially-
determined estimates, which reflect a 65% confidence level and a 3% discount rate for
2021 and 2020. These estimates are based on historical information along with certain
assumptions about future events. Changes in assumptions for such considerations as medical
costs and actual experience could cause these estimates to change.

TJUHS, including JUP, maintains claims-made excess catastrophic professional liability
insurance coverage through Five Pointe in the amount of $90.0 million per medical incident
and $90.0 million annual aggregate which attaches excess of the primary, MCARE and retained
limits of coverage described above. For TJU’s miscellaneous professional liability exposure
the excess professional liability insurance coverage attaches excess of $1.0 million per claim
and $3.0 million annual aggregate. Five Pointe reinsures 100% of this risk to reinsurers
currently rated at least A- by A.M. Best. A separate limit of $90.0 million per occurrence and
$90.0 million aggregate is also maintained to provide liability insurance coverage excess of the
general, auto, employers and aviation liability coverages.

For Abington and Aria, liabilities for potential professional liability losses in excess of the
primary hospital and MCARE layers, CICL provides coverage up to a $4.0 million limit for
each and every claim, followed by a layered excess professional liability structure of $15.0
million per claim with a $48.0 million annual aggregate — the layered excess structure is
reinsured by eight reinsurers rated at least “A” by A.M. Best. In addition, CICL provides an
umbrella liability policy with limits of $49.0 million per occurrence and $49.0 million annual
aggregate for the general, auto, employers and aviation liability exposures. The excess
professional and umbrella policies coverage limits are shared with the various regional non-
profit hospital owners of CRRG and CICL.

MLRRG provides a $2.0 million per occurrence and $4.0 million annual aggregate general
liability coverage limit for Magee, Kennedy, TJU and TJUHS, including JUP. The MLRRG
retains 100% of the general liability coverage exposure.

CRRG provides a $1.0 million per occurrence and $2.0 million annual aggregate general
liability coverage limit for Abington and Aria.

For MLRRG the premiums charged for the primary professional and general liability layers of
coverage are determined by an independent actuary, based on loss and loss adjustment expense
experience and other factors, at a 65% confidence level and a 3% discount rate for 2021 and
2020 and include a charge for premium tax and operating expenses.

For CRRG and CICL the premiums charged for the primary professional and general liability
layers of coverage are determined by an independent actuary, based on loss and loss adjustment
expense experience and other factors, at an expected confidence interval and a 3.5% discount
rate for 2021 and 2020.
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TJU has accrued professional liability claims of $580.1 million and $510.0 million at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively, at an expected confidence interval and a 3.0% to 3.5% discount
rate, of which $120.3 million and $81.8 million were current.

Anticipated medical malpractice insurance recoveries associated with these liabilities for June
30, 2021 and 2020 is $282.1 million and $251.2 million, respectively, at an expected
confidence interval and a 3.0% to 3.5% discount rate.

16. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CLAIMS

TJU is self-insured for its workers’ compensation exposures. TJU accrues for its workers’
compensation liability based upon actuarial estimates using a discount rate of 3%. Accrued
workers’ compensation liabilities were $38.0 million and $29.7 million at June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively. These amounts are presented in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Letters of Credit

TJU had open letters of credit aggregating $43.9 million and $43.7 million at June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively, primarily related to self-insurance arrangements for workers’ compensation.
The letters of credit expire between October 17, 2021 and August 30, 2022.

Litigation

TJU is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, all such matters are adequately covered by commercial
insurance or by accruals, and if not so covered, are without merit or are of such kind, or involve
such amounts, as would not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results
of operations of TJU.
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18. FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION

Expenses for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 are categorized on a functional basis as
follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Education Clinical Education Clinical
and Research Operations Total and Research Operations Total
Salaries and wages $266,764  $2,318,336  $2,585,100 $257,495 $2,271,039  $2,528,534
Employee benefits 57,446 $491,731 549,177 59,105 515,788 574,893
Supplies 37,032 $943,261 980,293 33,029 850,985 884,014
Purchased services 61,337 $548,806 610,143 40,553 542,097 582,650
Depreciation and amortization 37,615 $226,181 263,796 36,800 225,908 262,708
Interest 14,338 $41,705 56,043 14,108 45,947 60,055
Insurance 2,463 $106,254 108,717 1,457 114,315 115,772
Utilities 10,724 $58,342 69,066 11,871 54,285 66,156
Other expenses 73,726 $360,928 434,654 92,830 403,065 495,895
Total $561,445 $5,095,544  $5,656,989 $547,247  $5,023,430 $5,570,677

19. NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

TJU has a controlling interest in certain joint ventures in healthcare related organizations;
Riverview, a 51% owned joint venture; JURA, an 80% owned joint venture; ROSH, a 54%
owned joint venture; GSRN, a 51% owned joint venture (that was liquidated in 2020). The
amount not owned by TJU is shown as a non-controlling interest. The following table presents
the changes in consolidated net assets without donor restriction attributable to the controlling
financial interest of TJU and the non-controlling interest (in thousands):

Controlling Non-controlling Consolidated
Interest Interest Total

Balance, June 30, 2019 $3,229,958 $76,079 $3,306,037
Income from Operations (306,210) 8,041 (298,169)
Nonrecurring items (104,135) (57,121) (161,256)
Distributions to NCI (9,756) (9,756)
Other changes, net (294,394) 3,253 (291,141)
Balance, June 30, 2020 $2,525,219 $20,496 $2,545,715
Income from Operations (4,243) 10,127 5,884
Distributions to NCI (10,036) (10,036)
Other changes, net 893,213 (3,086) 890,127
Balance, June 30, 2021 $3,414,189 $17,501 $3,431,690

20. RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES

In January 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) a
Public Health Emergency of International Concern. Beginning in March 2020, TJU's
operations were significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act signed into law on March 27,
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2020, TJU has received significant government support primarily to reimburse for COVID-19
related expenses and lost operating income. While management expects COVID-19 to continue
to impact operations in fiscal year 2022, it believes TJU will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its operating and financing requirements

21. GOVERNMENT SUPPORT

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act was signed into law on
March 27, 2020 to provide economic relief to individuals and organizations from the effects of
COVID-19. The CARES Act included the following key provisions impacting TJU:

Provider Relief Fund - provided general funding to providers that participated in the
Medicare and Medicaid programs and targeted funding to providers in areas particularly
impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak and hospitals that treated a high volume of
COVID-19 admissions.

Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund — provided funding to higher education
institutions for certain costs incurred or amounts refunded to students related to
cessation of housing and dining services due to COVID-19. Additionally, $2.1 million
of the funding received by TJU in 2021 and 2020 was required to be paid directly to
currently enrolled students in the form of emergency grants.

Employee Retention Credit - provided funding to eligible employers in the form of a
refundable tax credit on qualifying wages paid to employees during a period of
government shut-down due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Disaster Relief Fund - provided additional funding to the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) to support medical providers for the costs of treating
COVID-19 patients.

The following table summarizes the amounts recognized as revenue from government support
for COVID-19 in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets without donor restriction for June 30, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

2021 2020
Provider Relief Fund $150,818 $288,063
Higher Education Emergency Relief 6,354 4,240
Employee Retention Credit - 32,755
Disaster Relief (FEMA) 2,172 -
Total $159,344 $325,058

Revenue recognition of government support for COVID-19 was based upon substantially
satisfying all terms and conditions related to the applicable awards. Significant terms and
conditions included that payments will only be reimbursement for health care or educational
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related expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19 and limitations on billing patients
for deductibles and coinsurance.

TJU recognized revenue related to the CARES Act provider relief funding based on
information contained in laws and regulations, as well as interpretations issued by the
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), governing the funding that was publicly
available at June 30, 2021. HHS has made multiple changes to its guidance during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The potential financial impacts of future changes in guidance may
impact TJU’s ability to retain some or all of the distributions received.

Accrued receivables of $22.0 million and $32.8 million are included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets for the years ended June 30,2021 and 2020 related to the Employee
Retention Credit.

Additionally, the CARES act included a provision for deferring payment of the employer
portion of social security taxes that would be otherwise due between March 27, 2020 and
December 31, 2020. The law permits payment of these taxes to be extended to December 31,
2021 for 50% of the amount due and December 31, 2022 for the remaining 50%. TJU recorded
a liability as part of the following accounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
for the deferral of payroll taxes:

Line Item 2021 2020
Accrued payroll and related costs $42,967 $0
Other noncurrent liabilities 42,967 29,720
Total $85,934 $29,720

22. ADVANCES

The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) established the CMS Accelerated and
Advance Payment (CMSAAP) program to increase the cash flow to Medicare providers
impacted by COVID-19. TJU received $448.0 million from CMSAAP in 2020 and included
the amount in the advances line item in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at June
30, 2020, of which the current portion was $56.0 million. Repayment of the advances began in
April 2021 and totaled $52.6 million through June 30, 2021. The outstanding liability as of
June 30, 2021 was $395.4 million, of which the current portion was $289.3 million. The
advances received from CMSAAP will be repaid through 2023.
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| Assistance Pass-Through Entity Sponsar
Fosers Program Lisig i P brovgh By L ol Pased o

Student Financial Assistance Cluster

DEFARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Mursing Student Loans

Cmtstanding loans as of June 30, 2021 a3.364 1.483.555 L483.555

Mew loans irsued during 2om o326 46 fy a66. 833
Health Professions Smdent Laans, Including Primary Care Loans/ Loans for Disadvantaged Stodents

Omtstanding loans as of June 30, 2021 Bl Bog Bgf Ao

New loans issued during =xa 7000 Bono
Total Department of Health and Human Services 2. 880,287 =, 808,287
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants A4007 Lz iz

Admimistrative Cost Allowance

Frderal Waork-Study Program A3 L35L 524

Frderal Pell Grant Program Aq.063 549,747

Pederal Perkins Loans

Crmtstanding lnans as of June 40, 201 A8 2,406,980

Wew Inans issued dnring zom A4 038

Pederal Direct Student Loans 84268 14 g7

125 900, i

TOTALSTUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CLUSTER 128 187, g8y

COVID-g - Edneation Stahilization Pund A4 a050 1mse0  Commenweak OF Pennsybranis AgzsConnong

COVID=g - Education Stahilization Pund 84 gu5E LML

COVID=14 « Edweation Stahilization Pund 84 go5F AR AT

COVID-g - Edneation Stahilization Fund A4 g0cF 34074

Total Education Stabilization Pund 380,061 127, 5000

Total Department of Education LA i B
Research and Development Cluster

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

National Institutes of Health
Ervirmmmental Health b as Py
Emvirnmental Health .74 G074
Emvironmental Hzalth 2o BT 202,867
Ervirmamertal Health af g5 505
Ermvimamertal Health smap Colorado State University RonESooaar =7
Ervimnmental Hzalth 17,141
Emvironmental Health 250,587
Emvironmental Health 32h,054
Oral Diseases and Disarders Research 116,547
Ciral Diseases and Disarders Research W Temple University Shgyy7-TIU
Murse Anesthetist Trainership aaaa <
Human Cename Research il 00 168,050 T3.559
Human Genome: Research 0B Hfig
Humam Gennme Reseanch 41267 The Jackson Laboratory RenHGo1o6rg b
Research Related to Deafness and Commumication Disorders 1126 1149
Mental Health Research Grants Ao,z EEEEE T4
Mental Health Research Grants (2451)  University Of North Carolina At Chapel UmnMH1iog2s (2.451)
Mental Health Research Grants A 7223 leahin Schoal OF Medicine At Mount Sinai RonMHuogzy L]
Mertal Health Research Grarts gy.man 43360 University OF Morth Carcling At Chapel UnMH1925 41360
Menal Health Research Grants a2 (140)  University Of Morth Caroling At Chapel UonbH1zo02s [r40)
Mental Health Research Grants [ EEE HAL547 WR,547
Aleohiol Besearch Frograms »1,188 21188
Alcohiol Besearch Programs 205 1241695
AMleohol Besearch Programs 10,87y 10,87;
Aleohol Research Programs Tha 7
Aleohiol Research Programs aon508 00,588
Aleohiol Besearch Frograms 6, fi25) (86, fag)
Aleohiol Research Programs 7ash  University OF Colarade, Denver Ragddonghiin 7.z5h
Aleshiol Research Programs (=8.702)  Univof Lowisville Res Found, ProAAD2LEEy [a8,e2]
Aleohiol Research Programs 14408 124,408
Alechiol Research Programs gy Univof Lowisville Res Found, Inc. ProAdoegssy w2y
Dinsg Abuse and Addiction Research Programs 208,530 408,539
Dirisg Abuse and Addiction Research Programs 220,258 20258
Drisg Abuse and Addistion Research Programs 86173 RTM Viml Sgns, LLC. RaiDABETTT 86,173
Diiscowery and Appfied Research for Technological Immowations to Improve Human Health FR0.621 a3 20,008
Discowery and Apphied Research for Technalogical Innovations to Improve Human Health e 1317
Diseowery and Applied Ressarch for Technological Innowations to Improve Human Health 606,01 o i 6,739
Discowery and Anpfied Research for Technological Innosations to Improve Human Health 206 TR.200
Minesity Health and Health Disparities Research ag.a07 202 ReMDazrsa 2t
Trans-NIH Ressarch Support 93380 91,641 oL fig1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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Assistance
Listing Dvirect Fass-Through Pass-thi Entity
93510 - B2 University Of California, Lo Angeles

41780 -
Trams-NIH Ressarch Support . sBagn  Emary University
Research Infrastructure Programs - 449 University of Pistshurgh
Research Infrastructure Programs 74450 -
Research Infrastructure Programs . 47877 University of Fittshurgh
aust Century Cures Act - Beau Biden Cancer Moonshot - 13349 The Trustees of The University of PA
Mursing Resaarch E sg.072  Dresel University
Mursing Research - oo}  Drexel University
Mursing Resaarch - 5818  Columbia University
Cancer Cause and Prevention Reseanch 57404 -
Cancer Cause and Prevention Reseanch [2.287) .
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 181655 -
Cancer Cause and Prevention Reseanch qaflzey -
Career Cause and Prevestion Ressarch 524,189 -
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 444187 -
Cancer Cause and Prevention Reseanch bz -
Cameer Canse and Prevention Researeh b, .
Cancer Cause and Prevention Reseanch 4 -
Cameer Canse and Prevention Researeh i, g0 .
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research ALATS -
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 45,105 -
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research - 29,606 Morthwestern University
Cancer Cause and Prevention Reseanch - sf,054  University OFf Delaware
Camcer Canse and Prevention Research . 66315  Drexel University
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research . d7.58  MAE Consulfing Group LLC
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research arzef -
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Ressarch 208,020 -
Cancer Detection and DHagnosis Research 269,759 -
Cameer Detertion and Diagnosis Ressarch 466 .
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Ressarch 13,320 .
Cancer Detection and Dagnosis Ressarch 324y -
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research u4. g -
Cancer Detection and DHagnosis Research 50,640 -
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Ressarch . 38,773  Baruch & Blumberg Institnte
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research - aL8n  JBS Science, Inc
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Ressarch 85,733 -
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Ressarch 5LA57 -
Cancer Detection and DHagnosis Research shage -
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Ressarch 420027 -
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research - 8.n6  Drexel University
Career Treatment Ressarch asfaoy -
Cancer Treatment Research (7,030} .
Cancer Treatment Research (3.468) -
Cameer Treatment Besearch azs.n6 .
Cancer Treatment Research 25,041 -
Cameer Treatment Besearch J— .
Cancer Treatment Research 480406 .
Cancer Treatment Ressarch SeLqoa -
Cancer Treatment Research 280,800 -
Cancer Treatment Research 2.y .
Cancer Treatment Research 6,582 .
Cancer Treatment Research - (#63)  John Wayne Cancer Institute
Carcer Treatment Research - 174 KRG Oncology Foundation
Cancer Treatment Research - 7376 WRG Oneclogy Foundation
Carcer Treatment Research - s47o0  NRG Oncology Foundation
Cameer Treatment Besearch E (2, 25)
Cancer Treatment Research - 6,586)  Mayo Cinic
Cancer Treatment Ressarch - 266 ECOG-ACRIN Medical Research Foundation
Cancer Treatment Research - (2384)  ECOG-ACRIN Medical Research Foundation
Camcer Treatment Besearch - [z3,223)  Johas Hopkins Univessity
Cancer Treatment Research . 39,203  NRG Oncclogy Foundaticn
Cancer Treatment Research - o8t BOOG-ACRIN Medical Research Foundation
Carcer Treatment Ressarch - [E:E7 NRG Omeclogy Foundation
Cancer Treatment Research - 16a,258  Wistar Instinte
Carcer Treatment Research - 4974 Bound Therapeutics, LLC.
Cancer Treatment Research - if362)  Case Western Reserve University
Cancer Treatment Research - somw  BOOG-ACRIN Cancer Research Group
Carcer Treatment Ressarch - Sahz  NRG Omeology Foundation
Cancer Treatment Research MELTFS -
Carcer Treatment Research 1,130 -
Cameer Treatment Besearch 280355 .
Cancer Treatment Research 7741 -
Cameer Treatment Besearch w454 .
Cancer Treatment Research 247589 -
Carcer Treatment Ressarch - w053 ECOG-ACRIN Meadfical Research Foundation
Cancer Treatment Research - 770 Johns Hopkins University
Cancer Treatment Research LR o] . (11,458)  Johns Honkins University
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Cancer Treatment Research 3395 zogee  Johns Hopkins University U1l AsBbhGn

Carcer Treatment Research 93395 graza University OF Virginia RnCAz14594

Cameer Treatment Besearch G305 afizay  Arizona State University RasCAzgair

Cancer Bickogy Reseanch 3396 zeg

Carcer Bickgy Reseanch as.396 Barz

Caneer Biokary Research 3096 11z

Carcer Bickgy Reseanch 2ab 2068, g8

Carcer Bickygy Reseanch £ I

Cancer Biokogy Reseanch it 0,034

Camcer Bickogy Reseanch . uRIZY

Cancer Biokogy Reseanch 3 47

Cancer Biokogy Research £ 24356

Camcer Bickogy Reseanch 3.3 19747

Cancer Biokogy Reseanch 3 358,687

Cancer Bickogy Research o 385 fay

Cancer Bickgy Ressarch 39 51495

Carcer Bickygy Reseanh 306 a6 Wistar Instinrte PorCAL4n08,

Cancer Bickogy Reseanch 306 (2247}  Lankenau Institute For Medical Research RmCAmag

Cancer Bicdogy Research £ 7} Msdical Collage Of Wisconsin RaCAEsTs

COVID g Cancer Biology Research 96 43349

Cancer Biokogy Research £ 245501

Carcer Bickygy Research 5396 68,866

Cancer Biodogy Reseanch ol 13,000

Cancer Biokogy Research it asfivé Temple University RonCAza4179

Cancer Biokogy Reseanch 3 1,505

Cancer Centers Support Grants 3397 2,160

Cancer Centers Support Grants 97 136,305

Cancer Centers Support Grants 397 18I

Cancer Centers Support Grants 397 TRL KR

Cancer Centers Support Grants 397 anfhaad

Cancer Centers Support Grants 3397 240408

Cancer Centers Support Grants 347 o181

Cancer Centers Support Gmnts 397 WA

Cancer Centers Support Grants 37 12496

Carcer Centers Support Grants 397

Cancer Centers Support Grants 7

Cancer Centers Support Grants 397

Carcer Centers Support Grants 397

Cancer Centers Support Grants 37

Cancer Centers Support Grants 3-397

Carcer Centers Support Grants 397

Camcer Centers Support Grants Lo

Cancer Centers Support Grants 347

Carcer Centers Support Grants 397

Cameer Centers Support Grants a7 18,138 Dana-Farber Canper Institute PenCAmiguss

Cancer Centers Support Grants 347 (6.454)  Dama-Farber Cancer Institute Paolaezs

COVID 3g- Caneer Cemters Suppart Grans 37 =zh, 185

Cancer Centers Support Grants 397 TLELT

Cancer Centers Support Grants 3397 7k

Camcer Centers Support Grants 397 i

Cancer Research Manpower 298 45968

Carcer Research Mampower 398 248

Cancer Ressarch Maspower 398 [1,278)

Cancer Research Manpower 308 7

Cancer Research Manpower 3l 23t

Cancer Research Manpower a9k 37856

Cancer Research Manpower 3l 4

Carcer Ressarch Maspower 308 18y 363

Cancer Research Manpower aul 78756

Cancer Comtral 99 aB.nf  Frontier Scence And Technology Research MA

Caneer Cortrel a0 46,686  BOOG-ACRIN Mediral Research Fanndation UG ABg808

Cancer Control 390 50177 ECOG-ACRIN Medical Research Foundation UG aRgdeR

Cardiovascular Diseases Research a3 By

Cardiownseular Disenses Research 93-837

Cardiowaseular Diseases Research o3B3y

Cardiovascular Diseases Research as.Bay

Cardiowascular Diseases Research 93-837

Cardicwascular Diseases Research 3837

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 3837

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 93837

Cardiownseular Disenses Research 93837

Cardiovascular Diseases Research a3.B37

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 93837

Cardiowmseular Disenses Research 93837

Cardiovascular Diseases Research a3.B37

Cardicvascular Diseases Research 3837

Cardiowaseular Diseases Research 93837

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 93837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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Cardiovasenlar Disenses Research 43837 Bagage . fos5.152 185,151
Candiowmsenlar Diseases Research EEREES a51608 . 51608 206 227
Candiewmscular Diseases Research 3837 409,804 - L ] -
Cardicvascular Diseases Research 93837 55043 . 55443 -
Candiowmseular Diseases Research EERERS H1ETIN . 315,759 7
Cardiowmeenlar Disenses Research ayByT - 15,146 RenHLigrgst 15,146 .
Candiewmscular Diseases Research 3837 - g UeeHLassn s -
Cardiovnzenlar Disenses Research ay.8yr - oo Vale University UmHLzgsm 2700 .
Cardiowmsenlar Diseases Research LERE - (486}  Rhode Island Hospital RonHLizRaus -
Cardiovnzenlar Disenses Ressarch ay.8yr - 7ugtr  The OH Smte University RonHL1aas8E .
Candiovaseular Diseases Research a9.897 - 1wz, 208 Fox Chase Chemical Diversity Center, Ine RagHLazguus -
Candiowmsenlar Diseases Research aiBar pELRR . -
Cardipwmeenlar Diseases Research a1BaT . 15440 Partners Healtheare ULy .
Cardiovmscnlar Diseases Research a3.837 . 24z University of Fistshargh UGzHLgs=6g -
Cardicvascular Discases Research 3837 - 145,82 leahin School of Medidne at Mount Sinai RenHLagafan -
Lung Diseases Research a3.838 figq T . 25581
Lang Diseases Research 3838 432,84 - 349ET4
Lung Diseases Research 1898 . . .
Lang Diseases Research EERCEE] A50,00% . 174426
Lung Disexses Research a3.838 a5 fas - -
Lung Diseases Reseanch EERCEE 215,604, . 3bsT2
Lang Diseases Research 3838 EEEHS - -
Lung Diseases Research 3838 ST . Farzg
Lung Diseases Research a3.838 41577 . -
Lunig Dsenses Ressarch 898 - srg4ze Butgers University Pt L1t .
Lung Diseases Ressarch a3.838 - Fezs07  Rutgers University PorHLiiggr nbgik
Lung Diseases Research 3838 - 79z Ruigers University PoaHLaggr -
Lung Diseases Research EEREE 6594 . -
Lang Diseases Research a3.838 252,665 . -
Lung Diseases Ressarch a3.838 Ly . -
Lung Disenses Research 3.8 - wog  Busgess University PoaH LT -
Lung Disenses Research 93838 - 1646 University O Alshama at Birmingham UnnHlagsasz -
Lung Diseases Research 1898 - 120,880 Fox Chase Chemieal Diversity Center, Ine RaLigqfge .
Blood Diseases and Resources Research 3839 FEir - iy
Blaod Disenses and Resonress Research P 478,186 . -
Blood Diseases and Resourees Research ERED) abr.mad . -
Blood Diseases and Rescurces Research 3839 570 - -
Blood Diseases and Resources Research EERED] 2370 . 2170
Blood Diseases and Resourees Research a3.839 - mom  Rutgers University UnHLagaflr -
Blooed Disenses and Resonrees Research 3830 - 149035  University Of Utah RenHL1a1g2g .
Bood Diseases and Resonrees Besearch 93830 - 236,474 Temgle Universizy RonHLagreoy .
Blood Diseases and Resources Research 3839 - 4448 University Of Morth Carolina At Chaped RenHLasggmo -
Blood Diseases and Resourees Research 93839 - w648y Temple University ReaHLagrgst -
Blood Diseases and Resources Research a3.839 - w583z Temple University RenHLiogshe -
Blaod Disenses and Resonress Research P - 2asp  Washington University UH3HLz3fes .
Blood Diseases and Resources Research a3.839 . 8493  The Trustees of The University of Pa RoaHLigBowy -
Bleod Diseases and Rescuress Ressarch a3.839 - 174868 The Children's Haspital Of PRiladeiphia PouH Lygagan -
Blood Diseases and Resources Research EERED] - 1,468  The Trustees of The University of PA PoHLiafara -
Blood Diseases and Resources Research 93839 - 7579 University Of Kentucky RasHLagofd -
Arthritis, Mussilnzkeleta] and Skin Diseases Ressarch G846 3,709 . .

itis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research LERCELY B . -

. Museuslnzkelstal and Skin Diseases Ressarch 846 6,0 . .

., Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Ressarch EERFLY 250 . -

Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research LERCEL 95,549 . w0717

. Musculnskeletal and Skin Diseases Research FERELY gl . -

. Musculoskeletal and 8kin Diseases Research FEREL 344,700 . -

. Musculnskeletal and Skin Diseases Research B4k 411,404 . 144,805

. Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research a3.8a6 A8 BbT . Ladd

. Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Rescarch EER LS . 15338

, Museuslnzkelstal and Skin Diseases Ressarch P 1740 -

. Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Rescarch EER ssrdT -

, Museuslnzkelstal and Skin Diseases Ressarch G846 e . .

. Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Ressarch a3.8a6 FELY . -

. Muszulnskeletal and Skin Diseases Ressarch LERCFLY fai, 2By . -

. Musculnekel etal and Skin Diseases Ressarch [ERELY 185,007 . BT 4G

. Musculoskeletal and 8kin Diseases Research LERFL 152 . -

» Mussulnskel #tal and Skin Diseases Ressarch FERELY quT by . 112 Gy

, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research EERCELY 45.B2h . -

» Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research LR af il . -
Arthritis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research FERF 253,641 . -
Arthritis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Rescarch ERCETY 187 . -
Arthritis, Mussislnzkeletal and Skin Diseases Ressarch P afie sl . -
Ivinketes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Research 3847 425,268 .

[viaketes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramurl Research a3.847 548 - -
IDinkeetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Evtramural Research P 2 . .
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Discases Extramural Reseanch 3847 1,004 . -
IDiinbetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch P oy s .
Diabetes. Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Research afar afzsed . -
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Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch @847 TIT. A - T4 -
Dinbetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramura] Ressarch a3.847 4807 . a1y a5, By
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramuma] Ressarch CERT0) 260,112 . 260,112 oy
viaketes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramura] Ressarch @847 w5477 - 5,077 -
Dinbetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch a3.847 by fny . 481807 .
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Research aa.fay - i22.022)  Case Western Reserve University UmKSoonaoy (=) .
Dviabsetes, Digrstive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch @847 - Fubhz  University of Wisconsin oK 302 -
Dinbetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch a3.847 - 326 Columbia University Ui D 1160 3128 .
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramuml Research ai.fiay T4y - T2f4a .
Diiabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch @384y A - 359 -
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Ressarch a3.847 42715 . o275 000
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramuml Research ai.fiay a7.844 - a7844 Lm0
Dinbetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramura] Ressarch a3.847 Ty . 42538 .
[Diiabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramumm] Ressarch a1.847 3,385 . 23,385 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Neumlogical Disceders ai.f5y aoa.08 . 04,089 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenroaciences and Nenrclogical Disceders a3.853 i . 9 TR
Extramural Research Programs in the Neomsciences and Neumlogical Disorders a3.853 (1.308) . [1,308) -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Neumlogical Disceders a5 and. - 204 .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenroaciences and Nenrclogical Disceders a3.853 g4, . 24718 .
Extramural Research Programs in the Neomsciences and Meumological Disorders 3853 mpos - 211,005 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Menmological Disceders a5 anLBag - et .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenroaciences and Nenrclogical Disceders a3.853 (96) . (6] .
Extramural Research Programs in the Neomsciences and Meumological Disorders 3853 73,704 - 173,704 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Neumlogical Disceders a5 LA - 2, .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenroaciences and Nenrclogical Disceders a3.853 568 . i 871 .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Neumlogical Disceders 3853 aif 72 . L] .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Neumlogical Disceders ai.B53 195,751 - WE.TE .
Extramural Research Frograms in the Nenmosciences and Neumlogical Disorders a3.853 2357 . 24057 .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrcsciences and Newrologieal Disceders 3853 536 . 5338 .
ai.B53 240 . 2a.101 -
93853 359528 . A55.5u8 -
a3.853 E . -
853 (24} - (=] -
93853 7001 - 273,001 -
ag-B5z 300 . 153,300 .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nearosci a3.853 w5 - B g1 -
Extramural Research Frograms in the Nenrosciences and Nenrological Disorders 93853 Fooghe - 300,362 .
Extramural Research Programs in the Nearesciences and Newrologieal Disceders 3853 b6 . 41066 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nearosci ag.B53 3l - EELE -
a3.853 GG, 4000 . 0,400 .
a3.853 155,505 - 255505 .
: a3.853 a7aad - 4l -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosci 93853 = - 329,902 47707
3853 74787 - 74787 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nearcsc ag.B53 AN4AS - 250435 14,376
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrosciences and Neumlogical Disceders 3853 b5 . g, G52 G Bz
Extramural Research Ptugnmmthehmmmmnrsmd\l:nm‘lrgm] Ehso(drrs a3.853 aybaiy . phary -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nearcsc ag.B53 amahT - apshy -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenrmosci 3853 140,786 . 140,786 .
a3.853 w570 - 18,570 .
a4.853 - Bk Case Western Reserve University RES513887 a8 -
3853 - 251 Mayo Clinic UoiNSofmis 251 .
a3.853 - (172}  Cleveland Clinic Lermier Callege OF Medic UmnKSwonbin 7z -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenmsch a3.853 - 28534 University Of Texas, Southwestern Medica PoNSoaTT 2B.5a -
Extramural Research Frograms in the Nenmscienees and Meumlogical Disorders ay.fi5z - rat0  University of Fistshargh U INSogous .
Estramural Research Programs in the Nenmacirnces and Neumological Disoeders 93853 - wsros  The Trustees of The University of PA RenMSandbn 105,705 -
a3.853 aa07y  Trustees OF The University OF Pennsvivan UmKSnzm8 60,073 -
3853 - 21586 University of Texas System RsfiNS056 L5686 .
3853 Wagrh - BaaTh -
93853 At 526 - 48,525 -
a3.853 i, BT - afin ficry .
3853 f5.55 - B5.525 -
| 93853 5 - E= -
Extramural Research P'n:gnlm1nth.ehrumanrnﬂ-sawl\lcum1fg|n1 Discrders 3853 18G50 . wBan0 -
Extramural Rescarch Programs in the Nenrosciences and Meumlogical Disorders a3.853 22yt - 2,76 -
Extramural Research Programs in the Nenressienses and Menmiogiesl Disorders a3.851 - 10,681 Columbia University RenMSngms il .
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research ag.f55 {1700 . f17a00) -
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 zpar ECE -
Allergy and Infectinus Dissases Research a3.855 28,540 . G540 .
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research ay.855 (258) - [258] -
Allergy and Infectious Dissases Research a3.855 s, 2B - -
Allergy and Infectinus Dissases Research a3.855 sy Bar . n3.847 .
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 476,858 . arii Aol -
Allergy and Infectious Dissases Research a3.855 st - 551 2fng
Allergy aned Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 157170 . 157070 .
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 . 38 -
Allergy and Infectious Dissases Research a3.855 2449m - 244500 -
Allergy aned Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 00,79 . 20,793 .
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Allergy and Infections Disenses Research 3855 20t BT
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 nme
Allergy and Infectices Diseases Research 93855 73048
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 W45
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research w3855 174,185
Allergy and Infescticus Disenses Research g3.855 B by
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 444,094
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 7h,682
Allergy and Infescticus Disenses Research g3.855 F2 836
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research w3855 00,083
Allergy and Infections Disenses Research a3.855 Fubir
Allergy ard Infectinus Disenses Research G855 (5807
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 [1,270)
Allergy nnd Infecticus Dissases Research G855 o877
Allerzy and Infecticus Diseases Research a3.855 rhig05
Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research a3.855 134,00
Allergy and Infecticus Diseases Research g3.855 200,545
Allerzy and Infections Diseases Research w3855 figa By
Allergy nnd Infectivus Dissases Research g3.855 480 iy
Allergy and Infections Disenses Research 3855 8.5
Allerzy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 b
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research 93855 44,520
Allergy and Infectious Disenses Research 93855 4op e
Allerzy ard Infections Diseases Research 93855 2451
Allergy and Infections Disenses Research 3855 - 265702 New York Blood Center, Ine. RonAToriyyg
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 - (66} Dmke University RonATnooar
Allergy and Infectious Dissases Research as.855 - azfn University Of Alahama at Birmingham RmATisg
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 - 58335  The Trusteesof The University of Fa RonATuSong
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 - e University OF North Carclina At Chapel ReonAlugrses
Allergy and Infescticus Disenses Research g3.855 E 100,385 University OF Alahama at Birmingham Ry
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 - weras  The Trustees of The University of PA RonATagfoo
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 - 5406 Eastern Virginia Medical School-Conrad RifaAhgatds
Allergy and Infescticus Disenses Research g3.855 E whiugs  The Reckefeller University RowATigzfn
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 afygaf
Allergy nnd Infecticus Dissases Research G855 147
COVID 1 Allergy and Infecttions Diseases Besearch a4.855 50315
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 TRI
Allergy nnd Infecticus Dissases Research G855 .53
Allergy and Infecticus Disenses Research a3.855 TR
Allergy and Infections Disenses Research a3.855 1,582
Allergy and Infections Disenses Research 3855 488
Allerzy and Infections Diseases Research w3855 78
Allergy nnd Infectivus Dissases Research g3.855 8548
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 25,170
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research a3.855 - 1i5m06  University OF Mandand RonATagBabé
Allergy and Infections Diseases Research 93855 - ga,5z8 University Of Maryand RouAliggnge
Biomedfical Research and Research Training. a3.855 56
Biomedical Research and Research Training ai.859 FemITE
Biomedical Research and Research Training a3.855 FTIATO
Biomedical Research and Research Training ER:ET 59
Biomedical Research and Research Training 855 245877
Biomedical Research and Research Training a3.855 2fy.6a
Biomedical Research and Research Training. 3855 a0, Bog
Bismedieal Research and Research Training .85 ]
Biomedical Research and Research Training w3855 0,18y
Biomedical Research and Research Training 3855 45,797
Binmedical Research and Research Training .85 14T
Biomedical Research and Research Training 3855 =B bay
Mismadieal Research and Research Training g3.855 ofs, 00y
Biomesdiral Kesearch and Research Training a1.850 =008
Biomedical Research and Research Training 3855 53,688
Biomedical Research and Research Training 3859 200416
Biomedical Research and Research Training w3850 204,641
Mismadieal Research and Research Training g3.855 sl
Biomesdiral Kesearch and Research Training 93859 6B
Biomedfical Research and Research Training. as.B55 Ao,
Mismadieal Research and Research Training g3.855 04056
Biomedfiral Research and Research Training. a3.855 45020
Biomedical Research and Research Training ai.855 wrihpin
Biomesdiral Kesearch and Research Training 93859 2Bz 0
Biomedical Research and Research Training w3855 247,294
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93859 iR}
Biomedfiral Research and Research Training. a3.855 - (&2} Columbia University RmGMgy
Biomedical Research and Research Training. a3.855 128, 000
Biomadiral Research and Research Training 855 aflub
Biomedical Research and Research Training w3855 1345
Biomedical Research and Research Training. 3855 Wi gse
Bismedieal Research and Research Training .85 2178y
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Biomedical Research and Research Training w3859 285,15 . 285,195 -
Biomedical Research and Research Training w3859 Wagziy . 1Baar7 -
Biomedical Research and Research Training a.Bs5g 1387 b7 -
Biomedical Research and Research Training a3-859 150,548 . 10848 -
Biomedical Research and Research Training a3.859 gz 8o B -
Biomadiral Research and Research Training a3-B55 [EX.5H - e i -
Biomedical Research and Research Training w3859 236,435 . 20,435 4,006
Bismadieal Research and Research Training G385 - mofay  Signallok, Ine. Ry OMaEy e 2 8y -
Biomedical Kesearch and Research Training w3850 - 8251 Columbia University RoaGMLzrHod By -
Child Health and Homan Development Extramural Research 385 f37.379 - Barara TG54
Child Health and Human Devel opment Extramural Research 3865 27385 . TN nT47
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research LER 14737 . 14737 -
Chilld Health and Human Development Extramural Research 3865 TRET - T2 BTy 4TS
Chilld Health and Homan Development Extramural Research 3865 - siz94  Stanford University RenHDoporas 5104 24534
Child Health and Homan Develooment Extramural Research .85 - (aa83)  Albert Einstein College OF Medicine RoaHDofzBuy (n.383) -
Child Health and Human Devel opment Extramural Research 3B . (g5} ElmTree Medical, Inc. Ry HDoggagh [9,185) -
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research w3865 6,504 . 106,554 -
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research .85 WL - w1 TE abas
Chiild Hiealth and Homan Development Extramural Research EE . 1415 Temple University RogHDmoo6y w405 -
Aging Research 3866 (25} . (25) -
Aging Ressarch 866 780380 7ha80 44013
Aging Research 3666 60,956 . 360,556 -
Aging Research 3866 7 b0l - TG0l -
Aging Research B EELT . gty -
Aging Research 3866 1=ZTATH - BET4TE -
Aging Research 5.866 - 17550 Wake Farest University RowAGog555 7,550 o
Aging Research LER . 12793  The Trustess of The Uriversity of PA RonAGO54435 LT -
Aging Research 43866 - (267}  The Trustees of The University of PA RoAGofins by -
Aging Research G866 - 76 Temple University ReiAGofness 2416 -
Aging Research R 208,585 . 208 585 s
Vizion Research 3BT S, 05H W0 -
Vision Research LEE afiq005 . 44005 ullT
Vision Research .87 132551 138550 -
Vision Research 3867 168,514 . 00 -
Vision Research EER 549794 . ST 20n, 14
Vision Research 3867 - (202} The Trustees of The University of PA RoaYoofises (z0=) -
Vision Research LEE . 2qz.og  The Trustees of The University of PA RoaEYoufises EELE -
Vision Rescarch 3867 3haza4 . 30554 -
International Research and Research Training 58 40,658 A0A58 30,658
Imternational Research and Research Training a3-a8n 3.057) . [3,057) -
Advanced Development of Multivlent Vaccine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fever a3.RD 134,078 134078 2378
Advanced Development of Multivalent Vaccine Candidate for Filovins and Lassa Fewer g3.RD 387 . b 8.7
Advanced Development of Multivlent Vaccine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fever a3.RD 38,513 sz 3560
Advanced Development of Multivalent Varcine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fewer g3-RD R T FEaa40 385,823
Advanced Development of Multivalent Waccine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fever aa.RD 7807 . 7.ha7 -
Advanced Development of Multivalent Vaceine Candidate for Filovinae and Lassa Fever gy RD yon Azl g00,838 aubang
Advanced Development of Multivalent Vaccine Candidate for Filovins and Lassa Fewer 3R G60.954 . 0,554 figzafy
Advanced Dewelopment of Multivalent Vaceine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fever a3 RD 14585 . 04585 a2l
Advanced Development of Multivalent Vaceine Candidate for Filovinae and Lassa Fever gy RD 1548 1548 1,548
Advanced Devedopment of Multiwalent Vacrine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fever a3.RD 4n,633 . 40,633 5,630
Advanced Development of Multiwlent Vaccine Candidate for Filovinas and Lassa Fever a3.RD 78 ha -
Advanced Development of Multivalent ¥accine Candidate for Filovins and Lassa Fever a3.RD FongEs . FO0 g 0022
Claims Analysis HHISHzstzmsoomzol a3.RI - 15362 Beystone Peer Review Organization , INC SanPogsl Bk .
Clinizal Protecenic Tamor Analysis Cansartium @3RI 12044 Leidos, Carp. HHSNafmoBoaomE FEREERY -
Total National Institutes of Health 5 3 [ 78,Ba5,408 Vih7h BT
Foad and Drug Administration
Food and Drig Administrtion Research g0 19,849 Beal Prevention LLC ER44DPoosg1 19843
Total Food and Dmg Administration [T 19843
Centers for Disease Contral
IDiizahilities Prevention G184 - g6 The Children's Hespital OF Philadelphia NUarhDoons b0 -
Disahilities Prevention 3184 . ng The Children’s Hospital Of Philadelphia NlzzDhDooogss 10608 -
Centers for Diseass Control and Prevention Investizations and Technical Assistance .z - 7452 Nationalities Senvice Center UsoCEooodsa T0E -
Total Centers for Disease Control - 22650 2 gt -
Administration for Commumity Living
Paralysis Resource Center 93325 - ni4qe  PAI Life Sciences, Inc eoPRRCoong N3443 -
Paralysis Resoures Center s - whnox  University of Pistchamgh AWDsossoie (13529141 1 o0 -
ACL Natianal Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehabilitation Research a3-433 4867 . a.Bby -
ACL National Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehahilitation Research a3-433 Bs.Baq - f5.822 WR5TS
ACL National Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehabilitation Research 93433 15,843 . 15843 -
ACL National Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehabilitation Research 433 SRR - 2gana TLTR
ACL Natianal Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehabilitation Research 3433 an436 . 4246 -
ACL National Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and Rehabilitation Research EEREL] - 3544 Temple University ulFDVo018-or-00 RS -
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Total Administration for Community Living P 654
Ageney for Healtheare Research and Ouality Healtheare Research

Research on Healtheare Costs, Quality and Outeomes a3.z2f i faz pUEE ] Gh 5l
Research on Healtheare Costs, Quality and Outeomes a3.f 503 5363

Research on Healthcare Costs, Ouality and Cuteomes a2 13hu7  Memours Foundation RfiHBozTae0 w7

Total Agency for Henlthcare Research and (huality Healthcare Research e ] 136,117 25,082 oy 5HT
Health Resources and Services Administration

Maternal and Child Health Federal Corsolidated Brograms PR (1,041)  The Children's Haspital OF Philadelphia HznMC24050

Maternal and Child Health Federal Corsolidated Programs LERET] w71 TheChildren's Hospital OF Philadelphia HzoMC24n50

Injury Prevention and Costral Research and State and Commusnity Based Programs g3.136 Az

Commumity Programs to Improve Minority Health Grant Program 93237 5847 George Washington University CPIMPwrry

Coordinated Services and Access to Research for Women, Infants, Children, and Youth LR wz1s  Mamoni Center HizHAzgB52

Centers of Excellence 93157 g5z Geisinger Commomeealth School Of Medicin Dy4HFp0a50

Geriatric Amdemic Career Awands L5 This

(irants for Primary Care Training and Enhanrement .80 anof05

Gimnts for Primary Care Tmining and Enhancement a3.804 ABary

Grants for Primary Care Training and Enhancement .80 ()

Grants for Primary Care Trmining and Enhancement s 344475

Spedal Projects of National Significance .28 sng1 The Pennsybvania State University HirH Az

Primary Care Medicine and Dentistry Clinician Educator Career Development Awards Program 93976 15 b

Total Health Resources and Services Administration LG h5T 2 467

Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response

Haspital Preparedness Program (HFF) Ebola Freparedness and Response Activities a3.f1y (14.666)  Commonwealth of Pennsyivania SAF S00070353 (14,6665)

Total Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (14 foteli) (14,6066 )

Centers far Medicare and Medicaid Services

Accountable Health Communities 3650 oz3f  CamdenCoalition of Healtheare Providers PalMS331574 Fouzl

Tatsl Centers for Medicsre and Medicsid Services 70,238 e

Totsl Department of Health and Human Services [T Brogeusy W SEO0T
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Basic and Applied Scientific Research L300 6By

Baval Medical Research and Development 12340 47565

Military Mediea] Resanrch and Development e

Military Medical Research and Devedopment e

Miflitary Medica] Resenrch and Development e

Military Medical Research and Development p ] TLETD
Millitary Medica] Resenreh and Development e

Military Medical Research and Development pe ]

Military Medical Research and Development Bl

Military Medical Research and Development pe ]

Military Medical Research and Devedopment 4z

Military Mediral Research and Development e

Millitary Medical Research and Devlopment n24zn TRAH
Millitary Medical Research and Desrlopment —_— T.a50
Military Medical Research and Development nAwn sl
Miflitary Medical Research and Devrlopment oy e
Millitary Medical Research and Development 12420

Military Medical Research and Devedopment nL42n 671
Millitary Medical Research and Development 12420

Millitary Medical Research and Devwedopment Lt

Military Medical Research and Development 420

Millitary Medical Research and Devwedopment Lt 42137 University Of Oklahoma Health Sciences C WHIKWHIgnrzsmh

Millitary Medical Research and Deselopment gm0 17226 Columbia University WHIKWH200887

Military Medical Research and Development p ] 16415 H. Lee Moffitt CA Cent and Res. Inst. Wi WHzowam

Military Medical Research and Dewelopment 420 22 A University Of Oklaboma Health Sciences C WX WH20554

Millitary Medical Research and Development 12420 8 Christopher Beeve Paralysis Foundation WHINWH-26-Con0rg1

Military Mediea] Resanrch and Develnpment e 20,745 Christopher Beeve Parahysiz Frandation WRIWH-16-Ctrgn

Millitary Medical Research and Development 12420 Ly

Research and Technelogy Development . {428)  TheTrustess of The University of PA MbGOa1n

Total Department of Defense ROapar 7,8n F)
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Ca fian Research and 7 BraB6 a7y Virginia Polytechmic Institute DEEEmaofizor =79

Total Depariment of Energy sl Fra)

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
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Faderal Pregram Listing. Direce Pazs-Through Puzs thmusgh Entity Number Tamal Baated 3o Subrecipients
Agriculture and Food Research Initiative (AFRI) 310 5T w579
Total Department of Agriculture 12 579 12570
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Highway Research and Develapment Frogram 2200 18,485  Virginia Polytechmic Instinste 4519406 18,485
Total Department of Transpertation 18,485 28,485
National Science Foundation
Mathematical and Physieal Sriencas. RD - Mational Seiencs Enundation - own slsster ey womy  Rensselser Bohtechnic Institute sTasT 12,229
TOTAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER ETr LT T 0G5 By zallg 30,840,773
WA Cluster
DEFARTMENT OF LABOR
WIOA Adult Program (7335 TFif-m5
WIOA Disloeated Worker Mational Reserve Demonstration Grants agume  Philadelphia Woeks Ine. PWLg-06 151,112
Total Department of Labor L3777 143
TOTAL WICA CLUSTER T Rl i3
477 Cluster
Administration for Children and Families
Temparary Assistance for Neady Families a3.558 62afo  Philadelphia Works, Ine. MA 2,280
Total Administration for Children and Familics fiz B hzzfio
Other Sponsored Programs
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Arrangements for Interdiseiplinary Research Infrastreture 1L 142848 University OF Delsware Pz 004 149 848
Total Department of Commieree PYeYCT] [rY:T
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.
National Wildlife Refige System Enhancements 15654 22847  National Andiubon Sodety FafACmn5
National Wildlife Refise System Enhancements 15654 RAIE
Total Department of the Interior 28 7o
NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINIS TRATION
Exploration 23008 258,520 258,500 2gzget
Total National Aeronauties and Spaee Administration 258,550 258,500 g gt
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

i v for dness and

Matineal Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Brogram .88 280 18,480
Mational Binterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 3889 [3.897)  Abox Big, Ine HHSO ol {3.8a7)
Maticnal Bistarrarism Hospital Preparedness Brogram a3.88 so0.464  Hospital and Healtheystem Assaciation of Penmsyhvania ASPR COVITRg 200,464
COVTD=1g - National Bicterrorism Hospital Preparendness Frogram LER.GE] 143tz PERA ]
Towl nt v far dness and B 240,205 458,085
Suhstance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Senices Projects of Regional and National Signifiasnce ay.may 508,430 soB430
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and National Significance [EETL] a.026  Commonweakth OF Fennsybrania Department of Homan Servces  SMsfizfie 406
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and National Significance LR (u246)  Office OfMental Health And Substance Ak UrMuoturso (1n,248)
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and National Significance .28 Fnge Penn Dept. of Health and Human Services HymaMnizy 3
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Senvices Projects of Regional and National Significance a3.283 HRO51 Pathwnys to Howsing, Inc. HyedMotezw w051
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and National Significance LR wihis Project HOME, Lid. HygTlaBasan (FEC]
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and National Significance 93243 55068  Penn Dept of Health and Human Services HyadiMofzzn 55,008
Total Assistance Listing 93.243 i g g7t e
Cipioid STR aq.788 37,7 137,768
Total Assistance Listing 93.788 137,768 137,768
Total Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration G, 158 e, 77 Loal.a74
Centers far Disense Contral
Strengthening Public Health Systems and Senvices through National Farmierships to Improve and Protect the Nations Fealth a4z 4801 A8
Totsl Assistanes L a3.4m 4B Fr

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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Assistance Pass-Through Entity Sponsor
Federal Frogram Listing Direct Pass-Through Pass-through Entity Humber Taotal Fassed to il
Imncwative State and Local Pubilic Health Strategies o prevent and Manage Dishetes and Heart Dizease and Stroke-Finanzed in part by 2ot Prevention and Public Health Punds 9435 7,12 Commaonweakh of Pennsyivanin Department of Health NU3BOToouzEG ()
Innovative Smte and Local Public Health Strategies 1o prevent and Manage Diabetes and Heart Dizease and Stroke-Financed in part by 2008 Prevention and Poblic Health Funds 93435 5328 City Of Philadelphia - DOFH 1GEE0 a5.3u8
Innowntive State and Local Public Health Strategies to prevent and Manage Diabetes and Heart Disease and Stroke-Financed in part by 2018 Prevention and Public Health Punds L L] w547 City OF Philadelphia - OFH WROSHO-0E 550
Total Assistance Listing 93.4:1 207,587 207,987
Surecillance for Diseases Among Immigrants and Refugees financed in part by Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF) WTEE 4415  Colorado Department Of Pubfic Health HUseCEomTs A5
Surveillance for Diseases Amosg Immigrants and Refugees financed in part by Frevention and Public Health Funds (FEHF) 93755 4648 Colorade Department OF Pubfic Health NUsoCKomuTs 68
Total Assistance Listing 93.755 108y 11,03
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial and Tribal Organiztions financed in part by Prevention and Public Health Funds TR 13,066 AccessMatters 1B100n 13066
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial and Tribal Organiztions financed in part by Prevention and Public Health Funds WITEE [9.067) fERT {g,0dr7]
Total Assistanece Listing 93752 13,00 12100
Preventive Health and Heslth Services Block Grant funded saledy with Prevention and Pubfic Health Punds (PPHE) ] 18486 Hesltheare Imp A SAP poons3fag 108 g6
Total Assistanee Listing 03.758 108 86 108 gfh
Emerging Infections Sentinel Netwarks g3.860 70234 University Of California, Los Angeles UmnCEoon480 Ty
Emerxing Infections Sentinel Networks .80 o950 University Of California, Los Angeles UmCEooogda 97,859
Total Assistance Listing 93860 177 177,053
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial and Tribal Organiztions B8 e AccessMatters (Abington) Famia 13764
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial and Tribal Organimtions 3Bl 16,155 36,155
Total Assistance Listing 93. 860 16,155 137 0,019
Total Centers for Disease Control 20,154 5ra g S48
Health and Services A
HIV-Related Training and Techrical Assistance Y185 {wasm)  Columbia University UwHAzgem (1.500)
HTV-Related Training and Techrical Assistance 93145 w7344 Columbia University UnHAzgeg 77a44
HIV-Related Training and Techrical Assistance 93145 2q260  Columbia University U0H Azgzen 24260
Ciwidag- HIV - Related Tranining and Techmical Assistanse e 1739 Columbin University HILHAgTI44 TR
Totml Assistance Listing 93.145 201837 LBy
HIV Ememency Relief Project Grants Qg1 5 Cityof Philadeinkia Wizt 5
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants LR d@ié g City of Philadedphia RWoggs 186,719
HIV Emergensy Relief Project Grants G914 68 Cityof Philadelpkia RWogug SEnmm
HIV Ememency Relief Project Grants LEESED avods  Cityof Philadeinkia RWoshz HALG4S
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 3514 w78 City of Philadelpkia RWnsBs 141478
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants P 4,800 Cityof Philadelphia RS0y 4800
HIV Ememency Relief Project Grams LE ) wéotn  Cityof Philadeinkia RWisdz 06,060
HIV Emergensy Relief Project Grants G014 mpslo  Cityof Philadelpbia RWagsy 29,590
HTV Emergency Relief Project Grants 3004 gzodt  Cityof Philadelphia RWisay S2018
Total Assistance Listing 93914 bz 175 bz 7S
Mational Forum for State and Territorial Chief Executives 3540 954 Cityof Philadeipkia THGPSazgbat 951
Total Assistance Listing 93,940 954 S5
Exding the HIV Epidemic: A Plan for America 3686 15,568 City of Philadelphia UTRHAGH955-01-00 15,568
Total Assistanee Listing 93,686 15,568 15568
Total Health Resourees and Serviees Administra ton L1853 1,580,575
Suhstance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
Black Grants fir Prevention and Treatment of Substanes Abuse G3.950 wmoase  City of Philadepkia 1,100
Block Grants for Frewention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 9959 2e4mg  Cityof Philadelphbia 244919
Block Grants for Prevwention and Treatment of Substance Abuse LEL 5274 Cityof Philadelnkia 5274
Block Grants for Presention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93050 A Citvof Philadeinkia IWBOOET A0 TEL
Black Grants far Prevention and Treatment of Substanee Abuse gy w2498 Cityof Philadelpkia e 2 an8
Total Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration B g Szgus
(rifice of Population Affairs
Pamily Planning Services ag-ay g AccessMatters aragm 22500
Family Flanning Services a3z 7.500  AccessMatters R TR R 7500
Pamily Planning Services 327 sy AccessMatters K-S0 50,123
Pamily Planning Services Gy mmy AncessMatters 100-gen1 a5,763
Family FManning Services a7 6,350 001 B350
Total (Hfice of Population Services ma3h n22h
Total Department of Health and Human Services [ B 478 T 215,419
Coronavirus Relief Fund
COVID-3%- Coronavines Relisf Fund 201G SteuTT s0e27?
COVTD=a Coromavines Relief Fund .09 =2 444,605 Penn Dept. of Health and Human Senvices groondtnts 22 444 HO5 2,930,558
COVTD-a5 - Coronavirus Relief Pund .05 Lrzefsg Penn Dept. of Health and Human Services guoonlliiz L7 fing TS5
COVTD-g - Cameden County Hospita Grant (romndr) 21019 2248 851 =248 050
Total Coronavirus Relicf Fund PR 22,167,454 a1 BT ST

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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Assistance Pass-Through Entity Sponser
Federal Program Listing Direct Pass-Through Pass-through Entity Number Total Expenditures Passed to Subrecipients

COVID 1g- Federal Communications Commission 32.006 928,645 - 028,645 -
Total Federal Communications Commission 928,645 - 028,645 -
COVID-19- Immunization Cooperative Agreements 03.268 - 268,504 PMHCC NHz23IPg22583/NUs0CKooo5 268,504 -
Total CFDA 93.268 - 268,504 268,594 -
COVID 19- Emergency Grants to Address Mental and Substance Use Disorders During COVID-19 93.665 - 35,492 Center for Community Resources H7gFGooo486 35,492 -
Total CFDA 03.665 - 5.492 5.492 -
Provider Relief Fund
COVID-19 - General Distribution - 1st tranche 93.498 74,878,174 - 74,878,174 -
COVID-19 - General Distribution - 2nd tranche 93.498 20,318,936 - 20,318,036 -
COVID-10 - Targeted Relief- High Impact Area 93.408 - 101,494,660 -
COVID-1g - Targeted Relief- Funding to SNF 93.408 - -
COVID-1g - Targeted Relief- Safety Net Hospital 93.498 - -

288,476,553 - 288,476,553 -
HRSA COVID-1g Claims Reimbursement for the Uninsured Program and the COVID-1g Coverage Assistance Fund 93.461 2,062,07,; - 2,062,07,; -
Total CFDA 93.461 2,062,07: - 2,062,07: -
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 13,662,568 - 13,662,568 -
Total CFDA 97.036 13,662,568 - 13,662,568 -
TOTAL OTHER SPONSORED PROGRAMS 311,525,037 26,314,033 337,839,070 446,386
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD EXPENDITURES 523,452,421 686,684 557.130.106 6.433.634

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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1. Reporting Entity

Thomas Jefferson University (“Jefferson” or the “University’) is an independent, non-profit
corporation organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and recognized as a
tax-exempt organization pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Thomas
Jefferson University has a tripartite mission of education, research, and patient care.

Thomas Jefferson University conducts research and offers undergraduate and graduate instruction
through the Sidney Kimmel Medical College, the Jefferson College of Nursing, the Jefferson College
of Pharmacy, the Jefferson College of Health Professions, the Jefferson College of Population
Health, the Jefferson College of Life Sciences, the Jefferson College of Rehabilitation Sciences, and
the Kanbar College of Design, Engineering and Commerce, the School of Continuing and
Professional Studies, the College of Architecture and the Built Environment, the Institute of
Emerging Health Professions, and the College of Humanities and Sciences. The combined
institution has approximately 8,270 students and is located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, with
additional campus locations in the Greater Philadelphia Region and Atlantic City, New Jersey.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the integrated healthcare organization included TJUH System
(“TJUHS”), Abington Health (“Abington”), Aria Health System (“Aria”), Kennedy Health System
(“Kennedy”), and Magee Rehabilitation Hospital (“Magee”). The integrated healthcare organization
provides inpatient, outpatient, and emergency care services through acute care, ambulatory care,
rehabilitation care, physician and other primary care services for residents of the Greater
Philadelphia Region. Federal Identification Numbers for reporting entities included in this report
are 23-1352651 for TJU, 23- 2829095 for Thomas Jefferson University Hospital, 23-1352152 for
Abington Memorial Hospital, 23-0596940 for Aria Health System, 23-1352294 for Philadelphia
University, 22-1773439 for Kennedy University Hospital, Inc., 23-1476328 for Magee Rehab
Hospital, 46-1420853 for Kennedy Medical Group, and 80-0550282 for Kennedy Healthcare
Foundation.

2. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) presents a
summary of certain activities of Thomas Jefferson University for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Negative amounts represent current year adjustments of amounts reported in prior years.
Assistance Listing and pass-through entity numbers are included when available. The information
in the schedule is presented in accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”). Therefore, some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic consolidated financial
statements of Thomas Jefferson University.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts, and similar agreements
entered into directly by Thomas Jefferson University with agencies and departments of the federal
government and all sub awards to Thomas Jefferson University by nonfederal organizations
pursuant to federal grants, contracts, and similar agreements.
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3. Revision

The accompanying Schedule initially excluded $11.5 million of expenditures from program 97.036
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters). It was subsequently
determined that the expenditure amount that should have been recorded for this program was
$13.7 million. The accompanying Schedule has been revised to reflect this amount.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Expenditures include a portion of costs associated with general university activities which are
allocated to awards under negotiated formulas commonly referred to as facilities and
administrative cost rates.

Expenditures for certain non-student financial aid awards include indirect costs. Thomas Jefferson
University generally applies its predetermined approved facilities and administrative rate when
charging indirect costs to federal awards rather than the 10% de minimis cost rate as described in
Section 200.414 of the Uniform Guidance.

Expenditures for federal student financial aid programs are recognized as incurred and include
Federal Pell program grants to students, the federal share of students’ FSEOG program grants,
Federal Work-Study program earnings, loans to students under federally guaranteed programs and
certain other federal financial assistance grants for students and administrative cost allowances,
where applicable.

Expenditures for other federal awards of Thomas Jefferson University are determined using the
cost accounting principles and procedures set forth in the Uniform Guidance. Under these cost
principles, certain expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

5. Student Loan Programs

The Federal student loan programs listed below are administered directly by Thomas Jefferson
University and balances and transactions relating to these programs are included in Thomas
Jefferson University’s consolidated financial statements. Loans outstanding at the beginning of the
year, the administrative cost allowance and loans made during the year are included in the federal
expenditures presented in the Schedule. The balance of loans outstanding at June 30, 2021 consists

of:
Assistance Loan Balance
Listing #
Health Professions Student Loans, Including Primary Care 93.342 $ 935,899
Loans/Loans for Disadvantaged Students
Nursing Student Loans 93.364 1,950,388
Perkins Loan Programs 84.038 2,496,389

6. Federal Direct Loan Program (FDLP)
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 Thomas Jefferson University processed new loans to

students under the Direct Student Loan Program Assistance Listing # 84.268, which includes
subsidized and unsubsidized Stafford Loans and Supplemental Loans for Students. Thomas
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Jefferson University is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with
respect to the FDLP and, accordingly, these loans are not included in Thomas Jefferson University's
basic consolidated financial statements. Loans made during the year are included in the federal
expenditures presented in the Schedule. It is not practical to determine the balance of loans

outstanding under these programs at June 30, 2021.

7. Provider Relief Funds

The Schedule includes grant activity related to the Department of Health and Human Services
("HHS") Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act Assistance Listing Number
03.498. As required based on guidance in the 2021 OMB Compliance Supplement, the Schedule
includes all Period 1 funds received between April 10, 2020 and June 30, 2020 and expended by
June 30, 2021 as reported to HRSA via the PRF Reporting Portal. The Schedule thus includes
$94.1M of direct expenditures and $192.4M in lost revenue.

58



I1. Reports on Internal Controls and Compliance



pwc

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Thomas Jefferson University:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Thomas Jefferson University and its
subsidiaries (the “University”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2021, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, of changes in net assets,
and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 14, 2021, except with respect to the opinion on the schedule of financial responsibility ratios, as
to which the date is September 30, 2022, and with respect to the opinion on the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and Note 3 to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as to which the date is March 31, 2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Thomas Jefferson University’s
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Thomas Jefferson University’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Thomas Jefferson University’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Thomas Jefferson University’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
19013-7045, T: (267) 330-3000, F: (267) 330-3300, www.pwc.com/us
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

October 14, 2021, except with respect to the opinion on the schedule of financial responsibility ratios, as to which the
date is September 30, 2022, and with respect to the opinion on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
Note 3 to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as to which the date is March 31, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees
Thomas Jefferson University:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Thomas Jefferson University’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Thomas Jefferson
University’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Thomas Jefferson University’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Thomas Jefferson University’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Thomas Jefferson University’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our qualified and unmodified opinions on compliance for
major federal programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Thomas Jefferson University’s
compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Assistance Listing 97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters)

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Thomas Jefferson University did not
comply with requirements regarding Assistance Listing 97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters) as described in the finding number 2021-001 for Reporting. Compliance with such requirements
is necessary, in our opinion, for Thomas Jefferson University to comply with the requirements applicable to that
program.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
19013-7045, T: (267) 330-3000, F: (267) 330-3300, www.pwc.com/us
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Qualified Opinion on Assistance Listing 97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters)

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, Thomas
Jefferson University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on Assistance Listing 97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs

In our opinion, Thomas Jefferson University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federal programs
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Thomas Jefferson University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered Thomas Jefferson University’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Thomas Jefferson University's internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
have not been identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We
consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2021-001 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Thomas Jefferson University’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is

described in the accompanying corrective action plan. Thomas Jefferson University’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

September 30, 2022, except as it relates to program 97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters) as to which the date is March 31, 2023
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Thomas Jefferson University

Federal Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? ______yes X no
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not yes X none reported
considered to be material weaknesses?
e Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
e  Material weakness(es) identified? (Program 97.036) _X_ yes ____no
e  Material weakness(es) identified? (All other major ____ yes _X mno
programs)
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not ____yes _ X _none reported

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified, except for major

program 97.036 which is qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516 (a)?

X yes

no

Identification of major programs
Assistance Listing Number(s):

Name of Federal and City Program or Cluster

93.498 Provider Relief Funds (PRF)

84.425C Governor’s Emergency Education Relief Fund

84.425E COVID-19 Education Stabilization Fund (HEERF)

84.425F COVID-19 Education Stabilization Fund (HEERF)

21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF)

32.006 COVID Telehealth

97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between | $3,000,000

type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  yes no

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

There are no matters to report.
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Federal Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
Finding 2021-001 Reporting

Grantor: Department of Homeland Security (DHS)

Assistance Listing #: 97.036

Title: Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)
Award Year: 7/2020 — 6/2021

Criteria

Per the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (“FEMA”) Public Assistance Program, nonfederal
entities must record expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) when (1)
FEMA has approved the nonfederal entity’s project worksheet, and (2) the nonfederal entity has incurred
the eligible expenditures. Federal awards expended in years subsequent to the fiscal year in which the
project worksheet is approved are to be recorded on the nonfederal entity’s SEFA in those subsequent
years.

Condition

Through testing of the 97.036 program in the 2022 Uniform Guidance audit, we noted that there were
$11.49 million of funds from this program that were not appropriately recorded in the 2021 SEFA. On the
2021 SEFA, management recorded only the $2.17 million of reimbursement payments received from
FEMA prior to June 30, 2021, but did not include the $11.49 million of reimbursement requests that were
approved by FEMA for expenditures incurred prior to June 30, 2021 but not yet reimbursed by FEMA as
of June 30, 2021.

Cause
The cause of this finding was due to insufficient review of the reporting requirements and accounting
considerations related to this program.

Effect

Federal funds related to program 97.036 of $11.49 million were incorrectly excluded from the 2021 SEFA.
Had this been recorded correctly, this program would have been tested as a major program in 2021. As
such, the 2021 SEFA was required to be re-stated, testing was performed over this program for 2021, and
a material weakness over financial reporting was identified and included in the 2021 Report on Federal
Awards in Accordance with OMG Uniform Guidance report, which was re-submitted to the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse.

Questioned Costs
None.

Recommendation
Management should enhance the control in place to review reporting requirements and accounting
considerations related to program 97.036 to ensure expenditures are recorded in the appropriate period.

Management’s View and Corrective Action Plan

Management’s response is included in “Management’s Views and Corrective Action Plan” included on
page 68 of this report.
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HOME OF SIDNEY EIMMEL MEDICAL COLLEGE

Thomas Jefferson University
Management's View and Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2021

2021-001: Reporting

Management’s view and corrective action plan

Management concurs that it incorrectly omitted $11.49 million of FEMA reimbursement requests that were
approved by FEMA prior to June 30, 2021 but not yet paid as of June 30, 2021 on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) for 2021. On the initial 2021 SEFA, Management included $2.17
million of FEMA reimbursement which represented the actual payments received from FEMA prior to
June 30, 2021. Management has implemented a review process to determine the appropriate reporting
period based upon the timing of approval by FEMA of TJU’s project worksheets and the related eligible
expenditures.

Implementation date: March 2023

Ronald Keller
Vice President for Finance & Controller



Thomas Jefferson University

Federal Awards

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
June 30, 2021

Section III — Status of Prior Year Findings
Finding 2020-001 Verification

Grantor(s): Department of Health and Human Services; Administration for Community Living
Program: Research and Development Cluster

Assistance Listing #(s): 93.242; 93.433

Title: Mental Health Research Grants; ACL National Institute on Disability, Independent Living, and
Rehabilitation Research

Award Year: 7/2019 — 6/2020

Criteria

2 CFR 200.414(b): Because of the diverse characteristics and accounting practices of nonprofit
organizations, it is not possible to specify the types of cost which may be classified as indirect (F&A) cost
in all situations. Identification with a Federal award rather than the nature of the goods and services
involved is the determining factor in distinguishing direct from indirect (F&A) costs of Federal awards.
However, typical examples of indirect (F&A) cost for many nonprofit organizations may include
depreciation on buildings and equipment, the costs of operating and maintaining facilities, and general
administration and general expenses, such as the salaries and expenses of executive officers, personnel
administration, and accounting.

Condition

Of 25 grants tested for indirect cost procedures, two instances were noted in which the indirect cost rate
per the supporting documentation did not match the indirect cost rate as prescribed within the applicable
Notice of Award.

Status
The original plan was successfully implemented. As of June 2022, the original grants noted were in
compliance with their respective indirect cost rates.

Management considers this finding to be closed.
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
June 30, 2021

Finding 2020-002 Enrollment Reporting

Grantor: Department of Education

Program: Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Assistance Listing #: 84.268

Title: Federal Direct Student Loans

Award Year: 7/2018 — 6/2019

Criteria
OMB No. 1845-0035; Pell, 34 CFR 690.83(b)(2); FFEL, 34 CFR 682.610; Direct Loan, 34 CFR 685.309

Schools are required to confirm and report to the National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS) the
enrollment status of students who receive Federal student loans. Enrollment information is used to
determine the borrower’s eligibility for in-school status, deferment, interest subsidy, and grace period.
Enrollment changes, such as a change from full-time to half-time status, graduation, withdrawal, or an
approved leave of absence, are changes that need to be reported. The enrollment information is merged
into the NSLDS database and reported to guarantors, lenders, and servicers of student loans. Enrollment
information must be reported within 30 days whenever attendance changes for students, unless a roster
will be submitted within 60 days. These changes include reductions or increases in attendance levels,
withdrawals, graduations, or approved leaves-of-absence. Institutions are responsible for timely
reporting, whether they report directly or via a third-party servicer.

Condition

From the population of students receiving federal funds that had a change in their status during the
current fiscal year for the East Falls and Center City campuses, 25 were selected for testing from each (50
total samples). During compliance testing to ensure students’ change in status were properly and timely
reported to the National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS), 17 exceptions (68%) and 23 exceptions
(92%) were noted at the East Falls and Center City campuses, respectively. In such instances, the number
of days between the student’s status change and the date the change was reported to NSLDS exceeded the
allowable days. The average days late for the East Falls and Center City campuses were 189 and 124,
respectively.

Status

The original plan was successfully implemented. As of the date of this report, we have seen significant
increases in our reporting accuracy which has caused our reporting percentages to raise significantly. This
action plan has also improved our communication and response times with the National Student
Clearinghouse. Management will continue to closely monitor student status reporting to ensure
compliance continues. As of the date of this report, Thomas Jefferson University is compliant in its
responsibility to report student status.

Management considers this finding to be closed.
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Thomas Jefferson University

Federal Awards

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Supplementary Schedules (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Schedule of Expenditures of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Awards

Federal Accrued Federal Federal Accrued Federal
Funding Revenue at Revenue Revenue at
Award CFDA Received in FY Beginning of FY Recognized in FY End of FY
Department of Health
SAP# 4100079801 73,612.58 - 72,070.08 72,070.08
73,612.58 - 72,070.08 72,070.08
Department of Human Sevices
SM58386 03.243 25,000.00 04,648.00 4,026.00 98,674.00
H7gSMo82107 03.243 221,046.00 253,140.05 211,232.14 564,372.19
H7gSMo62310 03.243 - 237,554.30 10,050.61 256,605.00
346,046.00 585.342.44 334,308.75 919,651.19
Covid-19 Student Surveillance
AnasCa00013 03.243 128,787.00 - 127,500.00 127,500.00
549,345.58 585,342.44 533,878.83 1,119,221.27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Supplementary Schedules (Unaudited)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Schedule of Expenditures of State of New Jersey Awards

State of Grantor/Program Contract Number Grant Period Total Expenditures

HIV/AIDS Care and Treatment 2021

HIV/AIDS Care and Treatement -Mental Health DHST21CTRoO14 o7/01/20-06/30/21 501,368.15

HIV/AIDS Care and Treatement -Mental Health DHST20CTRo22 o7/01/19-06/30/20 167,318.83
758,686.98

HIV CARE

HIV Care Treatment/JeffersonNJ AIDS18CTRo13 o7/o1/17-06/30/20 2,663.35

Total State of New Jersey Department of Health and Senior Services 761,350.33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Supplementary Schedules
(Unaudited)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

1 General Information

The accompanying schedules of Program Expenditures and Revenue present the activities in all the
state financial assistance programs of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the State of New
Jersey at the University. All financial assistance received directly from the state agencies are
included on the schedule.

2 Basis of Presentation
The accompanying Schedules of Program Expenditures and Program Revenue have been prepared

in the format set forth in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the State of New Jersey Audit
Guides. Revenues and expenditures are recognized using the accrual method of accounting.
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Schedule of Financial Responsibility Ratios
Year Ended June 30, 2021

(in thousands)

Lines Primary Reserve Ratio:
Expendable Net Assets
40 Statement of Financial Position - Net assets without donor [Net assets without donor 3,431,690
restrictions restrictions
41 Statement of Financial Position - Net assets with donor Net assets with donor 951,228
restrictions restrictions
Statement of Financial Position - Related party receivable |Secured and unsecured related -
and related party note party receivable
Statement of Financial Position - Related party receivable |Unsecured related party -
and related party note receivables
15 Statement of Financial Position - Property, plant and Unsecured related party 3,066,244
equipment, net receivables
Statement of Financial Position - Goodwill Intangible assets -
28 Statement of Financial Position - Post-employement and Post-employment and pension 391,392
pension liabilities liabilities
19,27 |Statement of Financial Position - Total debt for long-term  |Long-term obligations 2,166,744
purposes
Lines Equity Ratio:
Modified Net Assets
40 Statement of Financial Position - Net assets without donor |Net assets without donor 3,431,690
restrictions restrictions
41 Statement of Financial Position - Net assets with donor Net assets with donor 951,228
restrictions restrictions
Statement of Financial Position - Goodwill Intangible assets -
Statement of Financial Position - Related party receivable |Secured and unsecured related -
and related party note party receivable
Statement of Financial Position - Related party receivable |Unsecured related party -
and related party note receivables
Modified Assets
18 Statement of Financial Position - Total assets Total assets 9,287,922
Statement of Financial Position - Goodwill Intangible assets -
Statement of Financial Position - Related party receivable |Secured and unsecured related -
and related party note party receivable
Statement of Financial Position - Related party receivable |Unsecured related party -
and related party note receivables
Lines Net Income Ratio
71 Statement of Activities - Change in net assets without Change in net assets without 885,975
donor restriction donor restriction
52 Statement of Activities - (Net assets released from Total revenues and gains 5,662,873
restriction), Total operating revenue and other additions
and sale of fixed assets
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Year Ended June 30, 2021

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Without Donor Restriction

Line

[ I B e N N

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

20
21
22

23
24
25
26

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

38
39
40
41
42

43

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Pledges receivable, current
Insurance recoverable, current
Assets whose use is limited, current
Other current assets

Total current assets

Long-term investments
Assets whose use is limited, noncurrent
Assets held by affiliated foundations
Pledges receivable, noncurrent
Insurance recoverable, noncurrent
Loans receivable from students, net
Land, buildings and equipment, net
Right-of-use assets
Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Current portion of:
Long-term obligations

Accrued professional liability claims
Accrued workers' compensation claims
Deferred revenues

Advances
Operating lease obligations
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related costs
Total current liabilities

Long-term obligations
Accrued pension liability
Federal student loan advances
Deferred revenues and rent
Accrued professional liability claims
Accrued workers' compensation claims
Interest rate hedges
Operating lease obligations
Advances
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Net assets without donor restriction - Thomas Jefferson University

Noncontrolling interest in joint ventures
Total net assets without donor restriction
Net assets with donor restriction

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$301,454
2,531,594
583,790
119,370
31,165
71,971
737
51,718

3,691,799

1,699,470
85,630
50,670

103,522
221,032
21,054
3,066,244
311,698
36.803

$9,287,922

$33,739

120,290
12,741
28,600

317,859

32,783
421,041
387,176

1,354,229

2,133,005
391,392
5,867
5,417
459,761
25,289
34,919
320,082
106,062
68,981

4,905,004

3,414,189
17,501
3,431,690
951,228

4,382,918

$9,287,922
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Line

Operating revenues, gains and other support:
44 Net patient service revenue
45  Grants and contracts
46  Tuition and fees, net
47  Investment income
48  Contributions
49  Other revenue
50  Government support for COVID-19
51  Net assets released from restrictions
52 Total operating revenues, gains and other support

Operating expenses:
53  Salaries and wages
54  Employee benefits
55 Supplies
56  Purchased services
57  Depreciation and amortization
58  Interest
59  Insurance
60  Utilities
61  Other
62 Total operating expenses

63 Income from operations

Nonoperating items and other changes in net assets without donor
restriction, net:

64  Return on investments, net of amounts classified as operating revenue

65 Interest rate hedges

66  Net assets released from restrictions used for purchase of property and
equipment

67  Decrease in pension liability

68  Distributions to noncontrolling interest

69  Other

Increase in nonoperating items and other changes in net assets
70 without donor restriction

71 Increase in net assets without donor restriction

$4,599,893
160,603
208,909
77,474
3,543
395,159
159,344
57,948

5,662,873

2,585,100
549,177
980,293
610,143
263,796

56,043
108,717
69,066
434,654

5,656,989

5,884

478,196
24,629

7,780

379,655

(10,036)
(133)

880,091

$885,975
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